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1} OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue
Revenue has increased by

over 82% in the last 3 years

from £390m in 2020 to
E712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carpon tonnes this year

Number of loans
Over the yea:r‘ we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive’s review

Our Group was 1t a solid positicon coming cut of

the lockdown resgonse to Cowid-15. and ou
busiress hias cantneed (o perfonm roousty
trrougno.at tre year TS year Nas ceen some

unferecasted gFCV,’t 1N value of cartan avisions

cas

primarily drven by the nerease r eneqgy or

Fern Trading Lim=ed {"the Company” or togetrer

with its subsdanes tne Group”) targets cornsistent

arowth for sharehiolders over the long term, wih a

focus on steady and oredictab grﬂwlh rss
t

Siversifed and

Jdurirg roore cnal
We have &
befitung a Group witr rore thar

ulariy rmportat ¢

<nNgir

le)

2cone™Ic concit ons

mature osiness

22 years of trading h slory and amoibon. The ©

Comprises maore thar ZSC} carnpan es that nave

operatec N a

Jencraiung s

shiareholders We cperate in escential sectors that
We expect to cerform steadily through market

votatility.

zad

From this s

ircrernental

rressurs

new acj cent sectors Thﬂse sectors provida us

=
with a2 plat®ormr fo contrue 1o expand e with

OLr 2Xis day QU7 J"D'JD COrmprses

erergy, gr'ooerzy le—md.mg, healincarc infrastructure.

Y
!

fibre and ~cuse buid Pg drssions, We nave grov\m

to be a zign:ficant cresence within cur Mos
astaglished seciors, producing 4.2% of ine JK'z
sciar energy ana 1./7% of tre UCs orzhore windg

energy cutput, and buwlding 3 £4581m short ard

rmedium term erding bosiness that falitates tre

vercert of hormes
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OrMoeny’s srare orice de vered 10% growth

ver re gatt L2 mocthis,
f

wall gresd

wdth ces gannurn The extracroirg

(]
—
U

"
b

mcresse n the vade of our g 2ray division was

usoorted hy soid ope r“::l performance across

rowth in newer

2 susooriive er*"ptoyer, WIth maore nan

1.690 Fuii-
OV

time sra’ acress e businesses that we

1 ang operale, and indirect errployment

orovided for furdreds more pecple through

cortracts trat we nave ' place.

¢

A reflection on our year

Qur business raised £404m from invesiors this year,

defivered consstert reverues while growing cap-la

dep.ayment, rezult.rg in £712m inrevene

generated acress the Groun (2021 £425m; and net

" L Es)
7

ssets of £2,219m (2021 £1.6883m restated).

“he financial statements for tre year show an
cefore ax of £4Z2m aganst our

g prost Tous
gy

sold for hghier prices

operating proft
exgected outcome of 3 smal accountur
robust performance i3 a direct result of
nroduces by tre groun beaing

durng thie year Amost 60% of our business

comprises renewable energy gereralir 573 sUCh
as solar enargy s fa
org-term reverue slrearms Thesea are ntenserally

thversified acrnss a rdrg of tecrrologes io mivgate
against poor performarc
contrib
arowh howeves ter vaiuas can stitbhe v
Dy cranges in phong ara demand
COMSSTuWl Ve anG matenial .ncreases 0 lorg term

e naspaciic sector &

n
Hute towards steady. prec‘:tabte share price

We have

Eneroy f‘i’("n

Jj’lJ
g ozly over the last

racasts and ene g/ rwWars rates

15 rmonins as the global

ooy recovers from the Covd-13 cenderric,

and seaks g w@rratve sources of energy as z resul” of
r Acrg with nfiaior these

FD

N Usraine,

Ve mETerawy roreazen e value of

Cur assets Nt

year with tre




Chief Executive's review

raarkets and starting corstructiar on & large wird

farm i Austrata. Al the start of the year we anded
nine addilional sites (o cur reserve power divis on
which orings Ls up to 26 s

ten sites for most of 2021)

ites i1 toial icompared o
Thesze sites nave
performed ahead of cxpectalicr s, generating
ERITDA of E26m (2021 £ire) dunng the year

Our success’ul and wall-esiaolisned biomass
division conundes to
delvered stan

This year | Fave be

perform well anc ras

le retlrns smce acquisition in 2015
er particularly pleased to see
sirong nerformance at our newest iomass site
lia, wih ch was acquires in Aoni
additon o ne

Snettertor, East Ar

2071, proving 10 be g valuabile 2
we pLrchased a Wazie-

ider construction ir

pusiness During the year w
to-cnergy facility currentiy un
Ayrshire. The “aciiity has beer in developent for

three years and wil. be capable of processing Gver

185.600 tonres per annum of nen-recycladls
nousehod, commercial and mdustrial waste whicr

would ciherwise be sent o landfll or exporied

This wiil generate 17 MWe of low carbor eleciricity,
eriough to power 30,000 homes It will be the first
ieidy free waste-to-erergy oroject 0

cilang and prejecied completion date s

many of QJr energy assets nave
nstructon which Ras cortributed to

our or sty reported accounting lossas, This is
typical of such busimesses qunag growth phase

even when cash gererative, because finance Costs
and accaurting charges,
This divisicT 1as now

such as o@pfeqa"on,
excesded revenues. reached

Cur targen size and sector spit

tc report an
accountng oroft before tax o n against ou
budgetea small accounting prefit This shightly

a ue to the matunty of

ger than expected croft = d

the portisl.c and nigher enargy prices; result ng in
nereased cevenus from aur energy dvision as well

as a~ increase in inflaton {(az excla ned telow)

=ty lerd ng husiress makes o around
e Group and compriees shent and meaium
term secured loans 1o experienced property

profess orals Trig established part of ou bum.e:s

contnuaen to cerform well folowing 3 short penod
Cowid 13

e to wote fewer loans

of slow aown durnng when we
Our average
0an honk wat 182 1nhans this year to UK oo

ntent anally choe

SIS

Cur fesding dwvision has always operated
conservative lcan 1o vaile evels |
t

order that it maintans ac

3
i)
3
kol
&

ceverasl imes, The Group s fak'ng a naturaly

caufious aporoach when assessing new iending

opportuniues in ignt of the c:banginc ECONOMIG

out.ook. To date, the Group has ient 22 Zor of

cropery lcans since inception in 2070, suffering

only £6min capia, losses. T his siron

4 ko
i

tra

¢ record

s the result of cur careful approach in thiz secter,
comprsing discipined due diigerce, conservative
can-to-value ralics and an ability and wilin

SECIOr during tirnes of

gress (o
reduce activity 17 th.s
eCOrQric uncertamty, We wi. continue to adopt

this approach throughodt the coming year.

The healthcare div.sicn makes up around 4% of the
Group and s broadly perfforming weil Our
retirement villages business, Rangeford Heldin c;s
Lirited "Range‘ord’) contnued o sell aparimen
af three sites, commenced construction of a fourth
village in Chertsey, and acguired a fifth location
near Camibnidge auring the year Sales at the
Cherssey site are expectad to commence in 2024,
on at the Cambndg

axpected 1o start in 2023 with the first sales

weile construct e site 13

cormnmencing in 2026

Our Fbre givision was establshed in 2019 ard
remairs ar area of growtn for the Gro‘,p, now
cormrpnsing of six operating businesses. Cur

residental busnesses, Jurassic Fabre, Swsh Sibre,
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Chief Executive’'s review

Gigaret ana Alipomnts Fiore are burding uirafast i Inflation and Interest rates

“flore o the premises’ broagkand netwerks ir ! Thie h.grer rate of inflaticn mpen% 2d s year :
regicns of the UK which have beer overlaoked oy haz peen "esconsitie for some o the
lgrger operators Giganet provides connectivity outperforrance agairs: expecial-ons 1M tre :
homes end businesses across the UK uaing CiyPibre | Company's share prce HM Treasury forecast that
zrd Doenreach infrastruciure ana V S s a software gk inf ation s skely to be presert until 2025, a5 3
cevelopment company which has devaioped result we expect 1o receive more reverue for the :

proprigtary sctware 1o alow interret Service D oenorgy generated witdin CJr energy avition, and a

Frovders o sel connectivily over whoiesale enanled higher value fram the government subsdes that

networks, ircludierg Alpaints Fibre Voronossz is the

sorne 2f Gur energy sites benefin ffom, iINncreasing
od of
high inf'ation such as forecast has very litile effect

~a value of ase sites However, a short pe

on the rate au which the Group s excected 1o grow
“his s because re renewsble ﬂnefgy 5105 We oW |

cenve ther value from d s
NeVWIIS 1IN

cashflows over the time they are &
Southweest of £1¢l3 =
rs o more, f the

G
operate Tor, tyoically 20 v
custorers to tho r networ<s, generaung ecqrrr’ng P YAy
outloc< for long-terr infiation were to rCrease, tne

revenass for the Group Our state-of-the-a
rrpact or our share pr oo showutd be pasthive

Netwaorks are aele o mest castomer demana for ’ o :ju . :
becalLse twoud rorasse tne revesue each of our ;
higher broadhand speeds req ' P |

. sites woud excect o meke, - contrast o a
more working-from-tome ar A
) relatively fixed Cost Dase.
v deo-an-aernand services, In London, Vorbaoss has 7 nr

also contnuaa 1o Lasd and has installed over The expeced nze Ininteres; rates

COkm of fore wth a commitrent (o offer 10Gop: retur: 1 crma. afier a swgmi’\'caﬂt nerod oF very
fibre o up 10 15.000 putinesses in Ceniral _ondon

busi~ess s expeacted 10 be broadly nedtral since :
. our Grous 1 inert: N‘“h)« structured so as Not to
bre civisico™ remans ir a grow'h chase )
SXOENENTE SignStart vaiue eros on when inerest

‘or the next -5 years we G0 Not exoect 1o report

ﬁ
3N}

2 aceouRtAg Sroft fes change, We Contnue to 3Ke 8 CaLtc.us
an [ A
5

o
i
e
-+

oac” w-ilie cur erding bus ness
owaras the e~d of the year, we acced 2 new

Towaras the e~d of the y € d:

croperty dey

of BEuvia -ormes (Elvig") for £85 T Eovig 1s an

ris g intersst rates are felt more ¢ .osey, and we

=oper tothe Growp, wik the gcguciton rave tee souty 10 recuce t-e number of loars

we write, or alter the rnisk profile of our ‘cars

estatzishec house b ce*devetopw’-g Aid-rrar<et reducrg foar 10 V.UE Tauns Of Dausin

ol

4

e rarke: snoL.d that

e TRV el e b | — = o
amiy hiomes = Lordor commuter towrs ard

L ME DAY 1D Grow It N 3 measured way over
e next five years wite u

&ECC momes per year,

zfforusthe romres B

leadersiio eam whG are Key 1o rurning he pusiress




Chief Executive's review

WVISIDN QoNu

Current trading and outlook i Perforrrance in our healthcare d eianlal¥
to e stable, and we continue to reman positiv

[l

Since the year end, the Group has contirues o
perform steadily frore an operationa. perspective about the opoorturities to improve performarce in
and 'n lrewith our expecatons atbet we nave tnis sector

seer: share once growth: areac of larget due o the @ o

nce year end, we have cont nued o bu ld out our
continued Increase i long terrn crergy prce [ . . .
N v Fbhre netwaorks, with constructon razving N line

forecasts Qur growth targets for the Group over . . o
= ‘ towith ol expectatons We coniinue 1o review
the mediurm and 'ong term rermain unchanged ard 3 e o .
- I opporiunties for hath organc and inorganic

we continue 1o focus o0 maintaining a diversifed : e T e
‘ ‘ L togrowth supporting our xsting maragemeant tearns
nLsiness that is capable of delverng maore : , . .
‘ i i delvering this strategy
predictalle growth for sharehaolders. i

In Jecember 2022 we have acquired the r gits o

The recertly anncunced Electncity Gererator Levy
"EGL wathin tne 2023 Finarce BIll wail have an

-
ol

S of rght 1o use mobile icenses from Tnree

UK, thus making the first 2ien towards bacoming an

mpact on the returns generateq from our erergy ‘ ,
o o = mobile virital retwerk operator
porffclo over the next 5 years This is furtner

Qur mix of husiress areas Pas developed over tire

dizcussed i the group firance review on page 2/,
) ‘ and may evolve further over the years ahead, driven
Cur proverty lerding business contnues to . ‘ .

= py the overarching importance we place on
aerform strongly, with increased deploymernt in this

-

Thus

shoutd not be read as ary indicauon of a whoesaie

meetirg the objectives of our shareholder

sector s nce the year end. We focus on short terr
wans (cur average carrent loan term is 17 monihs; . . : e
. ‘ change ir tne sectors in whic” we Qpergle, but at a
wrilCh enables us to adapt to charges In outiosk . e ]
) reflection of the role played by the strateqic

swiftly, we feel th.s s particularty important in the

nierests

mandate n orotecting snaréno.gers’
current econorric clmate,

"Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

obiectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we do

Fern Traaing Limied ("Fern’} iz the parent company

of nearly 220 subs'digries {togetner the "Groug”) Dur
Croup operales acress hve Key areas: erergy,
himat-care, lending, hiore and house burding, Over
the rast tweve years we have bullt g care‘ully
diverstfied group of operating businesses that are
weil positoned to deliver long-term value and

sredictable growlih for our sharerolders.

1. Energy division

Ve gererate power from sustainabie sources and
sels the energy produced ether directly to industral
consumears of to i;rge metworks Many of our

renewable ernegy sites auat’y for gcvemmeqt

incertives, wrich recresent an addivonal source of
ircome We have alsc utifsed our expertise n

rerewal.e energy o constract facilines for ale o

ongong operaticn Atyear end the Group had

20 stes uncer construct.on.

2. Healthcare division

We provide nomes ard laisure facitties to our
aceing popuaton, and prhv
provide higr-guatty healincare services across

operational zitez 11 the UK

3. Lending division

Ve lend o a short and medium 12rm, SeCUres
basis o aiarge n
We als0

o buld aszets

arner of propesty professionals,

eratie olher pusiNess

U

vide “nancirg 1o
and cther rezsidential and

Cormime

cial properties

4. Fibre division

We cwn and onerate fibre broadkand nebworks
ZCross various areas of the UK We puile the
networks and connect themr o nomes and
busiresses 1o provide our customers with Lltrafass

Fiore broackand

5. Home building division
Durng Te year, we s.coessfuly entered the fguse

buiding sector, acquiring Ehvia Homes whicn 1as a

strarg track recore of developing homes in a

sustairaie manner. The company 1§ a full-service

property develope:, mearing it proy

rom the des gn, 1o the eng neenrg a7d then fing’

of quality

construction to eniure the delivery

work“ﬁamsiﬂ.ip

Solar, wind,

biormnass, Property lending, _ Retiremgnt Ultrafast fibre Residential house
\andfill gas development villages, private broadband across buildtin
gas. financing hospitals the UK 9

reserve power

O

struar o
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Our business at a glance

The srergth of our Group's strategy is ' both s

operaucnal divers ty and e return profiie of these

businesses Our lending business provides fexitlity
and srong returs over tng short w@rm, winle our
erergy, 'wealtr*mre fibre and home buiding

[N

duvisiors ofer visioaty and stability of rﬁrurrﬂ Ve

the orges term
The scae of aur Busmess 2 a ej strengtn, erabing

ed operations as
rew sectors with

s Lo acquire large-scate establs
well as the opperiunity (o entar
miramal sk 1o the whole Group by selecting

Sector split’

Wird 22% —.

solar 20% 7

Reserve power 6%

B E Owning and operating assets 69%
RE Lending 31%

Cther 3% 7

Fern's sector
allocation

pusinesses with comprehensive business plans anc
stromg manragement teams This enaliles us to
ntirue to diversify our business without
coOmpromising on tre guality of our operations
Over the past threo years, we have successfully
errered the fbre broacsband sector and we now
owr Six cormpanies with excitling olans o deliver

ultrafast oroadband across the UK

{ealncare 1%

- Property 27%

- Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%

- Fibre 5%
Healthcare 4%

~Landfl gas and momass 9%

“Seclar spliis givert by val.e, as represented on the company ba.ance shaet of Fen Trading Lirmited,
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QOur business at a glance

Where we operats

We are proud that the busrneszes
with n our Group make a posit

COrTiDLion o tociety, from
generating clean erergy o the
creatior of hemes and the provision

of quauty hiealincare infrastr.cture

Biorrass cower stations

Wird ‘arrrs

OBE - r_@-

m:
H

|
@]
=

1]

R
D
or
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A
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bt %‘

o
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©ndusiry <nowiedge 1o

4
ard wind farms
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OQur business at a glance

Making a difference

We g-e proud to operate a Groug that rnaxes a PWe continue to axierd inans 1o 24 taw dnvers anc
positive contrinLiion @ saciety across the UK flee:s 1o erable tnem 1o use elecine vehicles,
genaralirg renswacle energy, oroviding guality ! reducing carbo sicns in our cagital
Fzalthcare infrastruciure and retrement Lving ang P

o L ‘ e I ; Fibre
delverirg high-speed broachand to underserveo Through our fibre division we are pulding cut the

areas of e country.
filbre optic oroadband retwork across the LK Four

Energy Yoof our management teams are focusses on

We currently awn 220 energy sites, progucing 1 builaing out fore oplic broadpana networks for
Z75GW a year That's encugh energy 1o power over | residential customers and srali businesses, ard a
a milior homes !OAfth s puilding a Aibre network to delver enterprise

- N . oconnectyty. Our sixthis a seftware development
Cur combinatior of £ : : '

reserve power, oomass ard andfill gas
iz

cormpany operating ir the fibre sector and

prov-ding serviCEs 1D Gur group companies
complement eacn otrer well, F -

Within tn g dwision we bave plans to create 3

f'D
5]

mest s energy argars iresoective

The Fern Community Fund s a social erterprise run nebtwaork providing connectivity to over ong rlt oo

‘ , o Popropertes in the next thres years, many of which

oy e Group, wach wors w Glsmbw cormmunity )

fLrds generated from our wind farms. This year, (he ;oare in srall towns and villages that dor't currenty
s generalec QU wAand farnm 5 Yea =0

Fern Cormmuritv Fund h arcied £ 1 L to local { have access tonmtermet connecovity It for modern

Commurity Fu as awarced £14m to locat &
Poways of work ng ard commrunicating
community groups, supported 13 local unversity

students tmrough our Student Scholarship Furd, I Notonly are our RBbre businesses bringing

and orovided a winter fuel subsidy to 706 resicents connectyty to unaerserves communities, they are

wno are local to the Group's assers, aiso generaling employmert opportuniues for

Healthcare younrg individuals via frarning acaderries and

Our retirement vilages provide hign-guality, apprenuceship schemes, and are Jra‘-:mv\_,] diversity 1n :
contermporary ving spaces, witn 379 Teleccrfl with one of cur comoanies nawng
accommadation unics currertly In place, and tolaunched a number of mit atves to recrunt warnen

. ‘ . Ponio the sector
schemes in varicus stages of develooment offering

over 50C additiona. sccommogat-on units, : Home building

Qur home building division utiises a high

A frendly community is at the heart of cur :
P oproperton of sustainable tmber frame construction

retirement villages, which s why in cur
metheds and installs air source heat pumps in ak

developments we provide central faciiies and a ‘
e . P properties, leading the way in this sector ard i

nue of social activity "or our residents, : ‘ o 1
! helping reduce carbon emissions

Lending
The loars we made during tne year have hepeg to

fund the construction of Sudﬂmt acCo! .ocati.,-”
and much needec residential properties,




Our strategy in focus

Our businesses

Energy

gererated higner retarns this year than expecied
Trrougs our energy division, the Groun owns anc coduet

(it hag the
FEPy cas ard i opotental to previde stable returns aver The ioag-

O market corgitors But cruc

operates erergy §tes whi

torm. This combing

electncty N tne netwary, a3 well as consiructirg 21 key 1o our strateqy to

rerewabie energy sies for future sale. Cf the 220 talance risk and return 20ross the range of Group

enzrgy sites that we own and operate, 194 provide actvities to genarate ta-get retuns for shareb

renewabie enargy, comnounng 1 the Groun's 1

csiton as one of the argest procucers of “Our energy sites generated over

re~ewabie enargy ‘rom comrnercial scale zolar st :

e e Ener iy epmcia * | 3,750 GWh of power.”

generale or many years. &s sucr : Dueto the nigr-gualty nergy sites w2 own, we

awning and cperatirg th sioathractive § are aole to secure lorg-ter firancng frarm

to the Groun because of > deliver i manstresm barks &t compet tve raes o ennanc

predctasie profic over: our retarne, which nelps us o daliver the level of
retirr: our srarshoiders exoonct

Renewaltie eneqgy s.ies generate power from
sustarranle sources and zell erergy pfcghnf'ed eithe I while our renewar

energy busmess started Ufe 1

directly o large industrial consumers o fo the P tne solar enerdy secior, the Grolp has oot

. . P EToR aroy : .
netword. Mary of our renewal e energy sites a sc I oexooruse across otier agjacent tochnok
qual fy for governrrentincennves, whicn resLits iN 2 1 jnciuding onshce wind, bomass ana andfil gas
portion of tre generaten energy bene : er plaris which orovide
rates that are .ocked .n' for a cpecifiea pericd once & The Groun
2 qualtying ste s operatoral and accred taton has CATOM W TS
oeon granien Tﬂas ~&s reduced same Cf the imipact s weaker conditons for

of tne vo\ctil:; roong-term energy price forecasts

; Ioenergy produciton from one techr‘-sloqv ofter resilt
Az nowy sites built i the LK do not guality for in sronger oronucLon esewhere T1e Grodo alss
historic govemrrem INCentives, we are te&inG more Gairs sigrificant osneft from its scaie n t%::\ cecton
interest 4t the market for < uk@ tre ones wa owr b gc gy pusiness © soread across over 220 sites
and oparate. i vastly reduc rg the r sk to Group profitabiity if one
Thwiing anc coerstir g energy SIS .S a core parn of §site suffers an ooersuonal d sruplon
our strategy ana currenly makes Jp a.nos: 60% of
tre Group's ref assets Thes gart of our Group has

Did you know?
If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

Im addition to ocur UK sttes, the Croup s deveiooing

Sites overseas, nunschotons that we understand

weld These present an atiracive opportunity as they
Lund on our sector expertise In countres at an
carlier stage of rerewabie develosmert Currently
we operae wird farms in lreanc ard ~rance and
sclar sites in Frarce and Austrasa, We have several
wing sies under constructinn i Potand, France

nd Adsraba

Durrng the year wi acquired ring reserve powe
plarts and one erergy from waste site. Foliowing
construcuon, we sald two wina farrns 11 Finland and
shorly after the yvear end we alse sold Carungtor
Pomt, a iarge solar e in Australia

Healthcare

Through sur healthcare d vision, the Group
cperates in the private medical and retremert iiving
seclors.
owns and operatas twao rehirement villages in

Qur ret rement uving business, Rangaford,
Wiltshire ard MNorth Yorkshire and s currently
developing three further sites for future aperations

Qur privare medical busirness, One Healthcare cwns
anac operates two private hospntals N <ent and
Hertfords! tlevel of care

in moderr, well equipped hospital faciibies.

Hire, providing the very be

Since returming to normae working patierss we have
seen an increasa N the number of patents paying

for their owr treatment as they face 1o
asts for NHS treatmeant Despite th

wdespread restrictions across tre

g walting
elftng of
X, Covid-19

continues o affect Ire acute Care sector weih a

-
strassnd MHS and increzsed infection control
i a

measJres that remann ir clace.

Lending

Lending continues 10 be a core parl of our business
and has provided the G
tive sector over the past tweaive years

Grods with g profitacle and

Fis well established part of our Group mainiy
of property lending, which provides
snort-term financing to experienced professiona:

o

pf( ery deveopers, Ju] io-let lanciords seeking
pricgirg france, and devens
provioes short and medium term financing

ment inancirg,
which

to companias

e scale of our Group and of the

A key henefit of ¢
susiness that we have buiit up in this sector 15 our
ability to mitigate nigk through having a larce
nurmrber of short and medium term cans spread
across small projects to individual Barrawers We
sroactively manage counternarty nsks th C;UQh
undertaking careful bor-cwer due diligence, taking

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




2 REPORT

s
1
5y
—
7]
)

[V,

Our strategy in focus

securnty over assets typically o a first cras
ard mairizining consernvar ve loan to—vaue
expected and

Alrise the impact ¢f

ratos

Mot ali leans will pecform as nase
measures help to mi
Thrsg

performance 1ssues on an indwicua. loan

urtres mitigateg through e value that we lend o
floan book,
055182

fE2 T

rdividual borrowers, reialive 1o cur wla

'emtly sgreac On average &c

loans, naividua. lcan o

Fibre division

Dur fibre divisicor include
cormmpan.es buiding fibre ne
< development Com

raticnat
vCrks i e UK

fve ope
and

cne softw Dany

al —ore bus nogses. we

o]
bt
1y

Trirodan our res dent

bulding new ohyscat Gbre networks far

comraunizes inthe JK gnd 5o far have built out

fhre infrastructure in Lngerserved carts of Devon,

Somerset Darsel, Witsnire, Ham ; shre,

<

Worcestershre ang the Home Countes. We are

cre m!ilior‘; nomres over (re

m

Cvz

—

alming t< pas

next three vears

o (f'rﬂ necte

arge Netwir<s involves connecting

large datacen

C

DOSr v rés were

ha ¢ cf the EGth century. Juraszic, Swwsh Elgld

d. as they both own
and also na

Grgznet are verticaly intedr

R Tate
‘\,l\_.\\J L

we e 2nn

L £ R
the fbre iniras

b,

sk as the internct servic

provider or 527 Allpoints owns fibre nfrastructure

zand will onpoard other 15Ps 1o the Allpoints network
ta seil connectaity to the erd cusiomrer

T-rougs Vorboss, we are buld ng a network in
Lordon (G supply business-o-business (B2B )
ness

st mers, Yorkoss has instaliec 500k of
Londan since 2020 and has
simgle 10Goos pr
that amoitious Lendon

enterprise cannectivity direct 10 bLsi
Cver

bre ontic cabies n

recenty launcoed a oduct
roarket, recogrising
quickly
they've re

busimessas will reguice More than the 1CGEps

conractivity lied or to cate

We have seen re o
srce 2018 a

o pecene g larger

ramd growt o our B on

VISITN W contirie

nd we expect this div
nart of our pusNess aver time
The Group expc—cts D
tby 2075 o fulfit
more ¢

ipend agproxmately £lon of

Its buis oians and reacn

o= ]

ommunities -~ need ¢f uitrafast broadband

Home building

Our new horne bulding busness. Elivia s a fu.

service housebu leer acauwnng land, gevelop ng the

ite, and sub

suery sellng the horrmes to

ind vidual buyers These sitos nclude a mix of cpen

market ard affr;-'daote houses ard sirive to oeiver

h.gh quality norres Tre businessis

orowm g fast w

rojected arnuai turigver ©

£250m and 600 howtes cut per year forecasted

withir tre pexr 2
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
pusiness activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham -

Paul iz Crief Executive of —er and -5 resoonsible for the day-to-day running of the

busiress. He is also a mManagirg dirccter of Oclcpus Inv ents Limitea ("O17

&)

where hie nas workeo snce 2005 O s a ke y sLoplier of resource ang exgertse
fry

to Ferr Paul's dual reie ersures that this relatansnio works effectively anc in the

best nterests of Fern's shareholders. Paul nas had vancus generat ranagement

and inernal consulting rodes acress a numbper of sectors and onngs with mim

Ln

a weath of ndusay and cusiness experience

s Keith Willey o T o Cra

Keth s an associate professor of strategy ang entrepreneursnip at Lendon

Business Scnoo!l He aizo holgs various non-execulive direciorships and advisory
roies at high growth and more mature companes. i1 h's role as non-executive
charrrnar ne is respors ble for tre effective operaton of the Board, as well
as its governance He brings to the Fern busness independent commercial
exgerence gainea from his time ir academia, private ezuty investment,

coms.ﬂtmg and various hands-on aperatonal reles

Peter Barlow o~ o0 0wl Do

Peter has over 30 years experiencs in intermational financing ¢f infrast-ucture and energy
As a senmor executive for international Power, Peter was responsbie for arranging over
S12br of croject and corporate funding, az wel as banking relatonships and treasury
achivives He ras spent over 20 years wcrlf:rg nternationally for HSBC, Bank of
Amenca and Nomura, financing acqusitions and greenfield projects in the energy
and infrastructure sectors His cominaton of Soard-level financing ana erergy
expenence Cver NUMmerous energy sub-secters, ard his all-round knowledge of
all the =ectors in which Fern cperaies, adds significant value to the operation ©
the Board as web as 15 strategy formanon and deployment,

Tim Arthur 0 0 w0l o

Tirr 15 2 chartered accountant wth more than 25 years’ internatonal experience
as a fima~ce director ¢f both punlic and private comparies. mitally he worked
for Price Waterhouse in Birmingham and Chicago More recently re was Chief

Financiai Ofhcer of Lig-tsource Renewable Energy Ltd, a g.oozl leader in tne
funcing, develcpment and long-term operaton Cf solar photovoltaic proects
Tirn brings extensive finarcial and accouniancy kdomefﬁ e to the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technoogy busiresses gainr—:d from his

2XECLIVE POSITONS
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Primcipal risks

Managemet idenify, assess and manage risks Tre procipal risks That the Group are exposed to
¥ g f

4

soc.atec with the Group's business ciyjects are descrbed seow, aieng W m the mtigating

sirategy. Risks arise from exiernal sources, these actons we axe o reduce the potenta. impac: of

i~ersk. We aso raduce our assessmer: of wrether

which are inherert corrmercial ricks in the marver,

o
and from ocperationa: risks cortaimed within the tre lielinood of tha risk has in¢reased, cecreased

systems and processes enrployed within the
business Ovorsl

or remained the sarr
| sk exposure is @*“aj—d ac oss
the Group through the dversification of actvtes,

both by sector and geography

Energy "Dms:on

Risk Mlt:gatlons

Market risk . Cc’mtfacts are ent O whie h h« fhﬁ nec
The energy sector 13 expenencing pornon of the ens ercrated ny our sn‘es
sigrificant turbuler ce snd tnere « Long-tenm governmen: bac<ed Sfflake ag'ef:mr“t
a rs« that forecast levels of mcame N oplace e Renewatle Ooigaton Cert mtr‘n
are not achieved due 10 Cnanges In {TROC™ 30% of our energy ncome was
who le erergy prices, off-take generae rn ROC revenue
CONTrAcTs Or governmers subsdies o« We engago the novermnment and e Office of Gas ard ‘%
Due o this turbuient ervirorment, Elecircity Markets {OFGEM) (o cortribute w0 an irdustry voice mereassd
tre p@reht'at for ncrezsed wita policy malers whno set future regulatory requirerents ﬂu” *G roarket
inerventon gulator 1s 3o -aothty)
arnsx
Cranges m Covernmant policy
may result in "educed reome
surearns witrin the grous cue to
aaditional ievi
Operational risk: s Lroregictabibity ¢f the weather s mitigated throuch
Lew < of energy produced may diversihzalion of teck nclogies and .ccation of ziies
e lower than articinated due to ¢ Regular sarvicm g oF assets s ,-mcenaxcw {0 ensure assets x
ub opural weather condit 008 are kept n good cond ton ara m nrise TNe nek mnas |
Cr pETfOrnMaAarce issues with assets are dnaval.able ‘or a onger pericd ~acnangs

egquipreert, whch m;y result1”
swgrl{-car” ar p

Financial risk: .« Man

ragement eNsUras Oy a Smail gort on oF tne Growo's
Eeverues from eénergy assets ang reverLes 3re expected 1 ne derved from
c

”'\Dv‘e’f e”

ed orice conlacts with Conraticns

redUuce eXpas Lre 1O INSreasrg Costs s
. fosad
onger or s Mo 203t ar
a~tcipaen d.e 1o reseurce No cnaTge

ava Aoty orincreased cost of
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Risk Mltlgatlons Change

Market rssk . Maﬂagememt reg ,-Iarly reviews tne cmr‘nomtive ands:ape
Expected sales from custormers N iarget build areas to ensure plans do not conflicth witn
are lower tharn a-ficipated due to oner alternauve networ< oparaiors.
mcreased compeution from other « Managermant eng agm oroactvely witn tre Ofmce of
; Cormrmunicacens and the Government to ensure thg ‘%
berefits of smaller operators are woill understood and its \n ‘rea;ed

A charge in policy L/ the
regilators ir favour o arger
operators could impact our sttty
o deliver pianned developrnent.

Interasts are approorately rooresented
We are an active participartin relevan: indusiry sodies
particulany trose representing alternative net

QDETAors.
redLcing reveniues and ofic encies ?
gained from a larger oresence in d
icular area
Constructlon r|sk « The Group has contractes with @ numier of differert
Cornstruction of tne netwaork sapplers to reduce ine ﬂxr(,;u'e to any cne mdww“uJI
takes longer or is more costly enuty. Selection of sutsource partners s managed Ircreased (due
than anticipated due to resource through a detalled procurerment process with long term tg =g€fﬁgs;ﬂr9
s L : - . [Glaa bt [
availabuty or increased cost of visiility of wark allowing partrers to plar financial and resaLIrce |;:
ravw maeriais. pec ote resources accordingiy. the sector as
= Where supply cham preblems are exoected for critical aitemat“r{e
SerTE I fea . & . PR, networ
=terr-; our tearns generally have & months stock of fore, providers scale
duct and cther materias on hand, and adgvance ordor bl
te’“}""IF]‘ r-qu pmer i U" lfno Lead t mes
Operational risk: . (“\ur fuefworl«s are bur N & resihent way with diverse
Network service is nerrusted of route options should 2 falure occur it one route.

foe ]

unirel able ead ng 1o potertial i03s This, comoined wth an aniity to wientify and resowe
of customers ard reputaticonal connectivity 15suas guICKYy, merirnises downt me of the
darnage retworks

No change

W
o, i
e nthu i
i i
3 st
ShhEnG Ene
Sp
$ Pivish et
LS %&&;;y»s\

T 4 i
w w"z;m : oy
3 T R&‘?{q

H
STiiret su»m«??ﬁ?#
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Principal risks and uncertainties

o

Market risk: o Tnetearns pro-acl

lrcr ea”'ﬂq irfation and neres rrarketpiace and are precared

rates lead o 5 marketow.de aloan moves intc r*r aul

af‘\,rdm‘ Lty ssae, resuling i a + Durls vE lGar-imvaie [LTV) o

rating w.th a max mem [7\/ of 7U%

drog in property values 2Cross
sectors of reat estate This may
moact Gur asiily o re
ioan in ful tnrouan a re

No change

or sale
Counterparty rlsk e Loans are secured agamrst ¢ U:. cal ur dﬂfyr‘!\, securty,
Loans may e made 1 Jngditat SLCh 85 a Charge over the Droperty or oleer assets of the
codnierpartics, mrpact ng our borrower These are tymcaly on e frss charge bagis o
ab.lity to recover 'r 2.Can paarce ensLre max murt cnarce of recovery should eqforcemart %
Tl acuor be neeced ‘ y
a ricreased {due
s inorougr due dugence 15 perfermes pricn Wowo g < unstanie
lcans, inclumng property or land valations and credn eLoromic
checks dore on Gorrowers, clirmate;
« Where soars are written “or 355858 Uraer construction
miiestones and covenaris ar [ Hiale
stages are cormplete prior g

HealthcarelﬂomeEuildingnivisions Do el o
Rlsk Mit;gatmns Change

Market nsk (Healthcare and » Flanning consents on undp velds ,:i ang are optimesed to
Home Building): rMaxirTese revenues and reduce tha risk of 105ses on sale %
At o house prices could
N . increased idue

TROACt our anlity 1o genarate G ursiabie
expectes reverue from e sae Elalslgle’aglia
of agartmerts n cur retrerrant chrmatel
vilages ard houses but t oy Elvia
Construction risk (Healthcare e The Grouan enters conracts whe e approonate
and Home Building}): 10 reduce exoosure 1o Increasing mater.al costs.

OnsiraCl an takes 'onger or e Trie Groun orly works witn reputal's 3rd parves with ]

strong race record of deliver ng sivri'a oroedts. NG Chartge

Health and Safety risk o The Group
{Healthcare):

The oreserhon of inuny or

rél gt NG oot oroVISIon
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Principal risks and uncertainties

.Group..

Risk Mitigations Change

e S b H R 5 A At 8 e g A R Y AR L HED S SR Bt B b b b Ttk P otima 2 n kv nand

FRGEERGARELE REAPES T RIRENGT W T UmenxGEA KITERa hHLERS PHL R

Market risk: « Where ‘loating rate deot i3 in place (where interast varies
Anincrease in base rates may inline with an underlyir g penchmark ratel, the Group
NCrease costs on debt faal tes, eners Nto hedging arrangements to 9x a portion of these Inerezsed
IMPECTNG the Gr’)uo“’\ al’w“‘;\jf to payments thrournout the term of the faciity Heaging [duets rise D
service gelt as it falls arrangemeants are cutlhred in Nate 21 of the ingncial inEres 3t rales)
s*»at(,mﬂ"tc
Liquidity risk: A derziled cash fiow forecast s pregares and reviewens
Poor v anageT ent of casn within by management on g montidy Dass m-:oror)'a*m; &N
t'ne Group could mpact the availabriny and cask requirements across the Groap. On at
Group's abiity to meet oblisations least a gquarterty basis this 1s snarec witn the 2oard.
as they fall due + The Group monitors ban< covenarts on an orgocing basis s

dherence 1o covenanis, Wrers
CoOVENants cant be met foracaste are updated for the
lower cash avalab.e as a result of the resetio

« The Group has a flexic.e finarce faciity thi‘: can be
drawn or at short notice to meest immediate Husness

to engure continued

Mo change

n~ed;
Health and Safety risi:- . \Nﬂ have deve. cped o
The safety of cur employees compliance with -‘\OA‘JOC
and those employed ffurcuj i the well-being of our staff
contracts are of paramoun: » beaith and safety training s provides to our staf ard
rnportance. There s a risk that contractors on aregular bass nereased
accidents in the workplace could
result in senious ijury or death.
Cyber Security risk: o We Pﬂ"p\ojf a uhlef IF armation Secunty O cer ("CI07 )
Ar attack onour IT systemC and wh s respons.bie for data security across the Group and
gata could iead to disruptio reparts guarterly o the Board, .
of cur operations arc loss of » The CISO works closely wath cur businesses to ensure T
ustomer data. Loss or misJse adequate standards of secunty ana nformation No change
of data may resull n reputanona. management are met
camage, reg.latory action urder « BEach of cur busmesses that raold customer data has ther
\.JDPP drd tknual '“lr €S oW cmm\,am(_ resounee f( T and secur'ty
The strategic report was approvec by the Board of Direciors on 16 Decernber 2022 and signea on itz senaif oy.

PS Latham
Director
16 Cecermper 2022

o a% g&! !»L;@ !
‘\a




Corporate governance

Section 172 {1) statement

e Scard consider that they have adnerec o the
reguirernanis O secton 172 of the Compan es At
2006 {the "Act™), and have, ir geod faith, acted in a
swould be most lkely 1o oromote the
SUCCEss ::f e Gfoup for the benefit of Its members

nom b
Wy

as a whole {havirg regard wo all stakeho dess arg

matiers set oUt in section 172{1a-f; of the Act)
in the decisions taken dur ng the year endead

30 Jure 2022,

[ auly o promaote the

= Group, the Board Nat regarc 1o a
nuper of matters, Incloding the tikely
consequence of any defisions i the iong erm. and
liztenis Lo tre views of the Group's key stakeholders
fo build <

Foars ‘ulfils

committees and the toards of subsid ary

undertakings, who ooerate witnn a corporate

govarnancea framework a

crass the Group.

T

tevery Board mmeeting a revaw of health ang

3, firancial ard cperatoral
gal and requlatory

= aken The Board a.50 review

course of the financial year

‘s business strategy, «ay rsks,

slder relaed rra

(]
v
[
3
Z

cdversity and incius vity,
eryirgnmenrial matters, corporate responsibilty anc

compiiance ard egal matters

We defing principal decisions taken by the Soard az
triose decisions tn

= of g strateq c natures ard

trat are sgrifcent to ary of cur key sta oider

CroOUDT e Board consicer that the following are
examo'es of onnc nal decisions it mace 1n The year

cune 2022

« Evaluatng ard cead g fo move aneas wiin
Increating wind operatons, wch s part o

Sur rerewalies

divis orin A ggust 2021 tre

Group acGurred a large scale, ready 1o construct

wind sz (e Alstrala Th s depioyment 31903

with the Group's strategy ta conunue to
davelop rerewable engrgy stes wh ch provide
pred ciacie tong-terr revenue streams. Tne
Soard considered the ogoorturity anc how it
atigrned with cur clbject ves to Make a positve

contibution o the community and environrert,

Trne Group dec ded o expand into cur newest

=l
dvision. house baiding In May 2022 tre Group

zcguired Elv s Forres, a ful-service property

developer, providing services frarm fne ¢

to the eng ricerirg ard then inal construct on
ta ensdre the deivery of guality workmanskic
Civersying the Group's asset tase and entering
it th s new secier has been well thougr:

The Boara
opportunities within tne

QUL with iong erm growih ir ming.
azzessed the strateg's

"-md‘mg to rrove ahead with this
zerng how this waoula impact

acquisition, co
ex/stng businesses withur the division and Row

it abgnec witn the Grow p: strategic oo ectves o

delver long-term value and predictable growth

for cur Sr“afer‘.cf.c‘e*s.
Revewing ans decidirg o
rCreasng ormess operalions

our renewabes orvis on. In 0o

Group acourred a arge scale, waste-to-energy
construonon se 1 Scotand. Trs deployment
algns with the Group's straegy 1o coninue o
diversify the Grous, des

sites wmickh provide pred

.up TCNewatie &nersy

rAVENLE SIreaTT, NS Lroy
whinlesaa oroing chan
rmarvst Trne 2oarg

It BuGra D wilh Crar Onjectves

o
~ake a oostve COTILLIch to the —ommunity
n
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Corporate governance

+ The noard deciced to change audit arrrs va a

June 2022
The Creup hao changed C\r‘m’vaﬂ-*/ since e

tendar process for the year ended 30

prev ous augitors were agoorne rd therefc

we were Luralle 1o redably aszess tae va.ue for'

mcney we roceved Three frms undenyent

the fender grocess and Errst & Young LLP weve
selecied because of ther strong commercal
understand:ng of our business, efficiert auait

Tethodo.ooy and valde for monay.

Business strategy
JLr basiness strategy iz set out on pages 11 to 14 of
the Strateqic

detaled Group

epcrt Management prenares a
oudger whizw s approved oy the

Board on an anaual oasis and forms tre bas s for
the Group's resource planning and dep.oy™ant

decisions, 'n making decisions concerming the
business plan, tre Board has regara frst and
foremest o its strategic focus, buat also to other
matters such as the interests of .1s varioJds
stakekciders and the iorfgfterm impact of ite

acricons on the Group's future anc repuiation.

Shareholders

Sharehclder relations and genearating sharehslcer
vaiue ‘s a key corsigeraton wren the Soard s
raking strategic decisions. The pnime medium Dy
which the Group comimun cates w th snarehoders
is through the arnual report and financal
statemients, which aim to orovide sharehold
a ful. understanding of the Group's activt:
ulis. This informaticn is publisned on our website

at www.ferntradlng.com

Employees

The Grouo's emoicyees are fundamenial to the
cverall success of the business, The Directors fUlFL
therr daty toc employees by entrusting oversight to
subsickary Eoards which the Chie® Exccutive of the
Group aiso sits on.

The direct
manage the day © day decision making,
engagemsnt and commuan.catons with employee

ors of tne subs.diary undertakings

ard ensure that people are tre
valted wih rezpect to nay, benefit ano

We fuly -ealise that our emiployeeas wish fo be

fairly ard <
conditicns.

informed and consulied on matters affectirg their
work and to be involved in proklem-solving
sffecting their own areas of ntecest and
rezponsinility Tre Group s firrmly committed to a
rolicy of good commurnicat ¢ at all levels and we
aim to establisn a climate which constartly
encodrages the cpen flow of information and
ideas. Presently thiz in

cludes monthly wwam triefings

at a local level ard | pudllfa icn of momhty ke

1

n the
WOrKpiace (s & continual 'ccus for the Croup, given
itz broad operational business. The Direct

The reslth and sa'ely of our emiployees |

ors review
Health & Safety Regorting at each board meeting to
ansure aporopriate policies anc procedures are ir
clace o prowect the heaith and safety of cur
employees and contractors. Wnere there are
potentia. def ciencies or issues, these are followed
up and resolved on 2 tmely basis, with ¢
kaving overs ght of the actions taxker

he Board

The Group cutsources acthvites and "naragement
of certan ooerstioral activities 1o external suppliers
Where activities are cutsourcec the Board enzures
that they are rnanaged by reputable suppliers who
meet all tre relevant industry and regulatery
commiimerts as well az reatirg empioyees fairly
Expected stardards are documented in all service
contracts and acherence 1o these are continuaily
maoritored by Board through their service
agresmeant with Octopus Investments Limited.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with all supplers

and customers and zeeks to mamian sirong
Lusiness relationshps with therm Tz 15 acrieved
by all contracts beng negeusted through a fair ard

trarsparent fender process which ncludes

a55253INg e Impact on the long-term objactives of

Foge g ]

ot e Bl
Al P i L2
5
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Corporate governance

tre Group. We review our payment Crocessing
umes aganst cortracts eve
are paid promp

e comoany is avallabie o the www.gov.uk

ry six Months (O énsure
suppliers iy and this nformation for

welssite,

The Grouo ensures tacts farly and i a transparent

ranner to atl custormers across alt dvisons and

services and actively engage

or defaults. The Boad closaly moniars cust
aragement tesm o

Colaal=tt
metrics ang engages witn the

understand tne 1szaes

arg’ expectat ons

if cusiness performards aoes
rol mest custom

consigers Octopus Investments Lmited
S cartner ard saopoer wih
responziplity for the provision of cperationat

al adrnizisretion and comoany

Community and environment
The provision ard operatior of sustainasle
ture 15 ar the cenire of the Croun's

irfrastruc

he

oomiake 3 positive cortr bution (o the

activities

Thrc 'ugh 1ts business

—

¢ I.‘
f\

/turge‘* our private Nosap @ms
MNHS throughout the Cowd 19

fowdmg

O
=
—
il
2

a
{ w

et for non-Coid-1%
Id not have been

reat
3t otherwise cou
camed out, ena cur fibre nenwork will give paop’e
i rursl comrrunines access 1o h go-speed
broadband

Business conduct
As Direcs

5 GLr neruan s o bengye respor by,

eﬂsquf'g mign £ bus e b
irlegaly and i aooordasnce wite toa high slancaras

s to resolve any disputes

O

3

f cons

Q

Iuct ard govorrance expected of a Dusinéss

{

our business

[

h as ours Our tention through

(2]

v
5trategy foudined on pages 1210 14) 15 to operate In
sectors and wono with other businesses that share

Cul values

Business ethics and governance
The Board is resnons
activities of the Group and its vanious

ible for ensuring s
busingsses are
conducted 1in compiance with the lew ana
app.cable goverrance and regulatory regimes, ard
the

ernai

adherence v th prevaling best prachce for

o

elevantindustry T ircludes review:ng int

contrels, ensurmg
Lalan
Bcard, anc siglements

GIVE 8 'rue anc “ar view o the of the

Group Further detall car bhe found in the staterent

thaT there is an appropniate

gsantes on the

fslilis ard expenerce epre

ensuring that the financia. s
state of affars
noage 29,

of directors respornisibilites o nothe year

10 20 June 2022 ro areas of concern have bean

flagged in this regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre Board's pohcy o0 empuoyees, burnan fgns,
soC al and commurity issues, envirormen

and anti-corruolor ard bribery matters is Qiscussed

Tre Bcac

baser

2ort 0N page 25
rate culture “hat s
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Group finance review

Heview of Anancial statements

The purpose o this report = to provide additonal

2xclanatory informauon on the frarcal statements
In rmeasurng our performance, the financal
rreasures that we Lse irclude tmcse that bave been

derived from our renories results in order to

elirqnate factors that d SIOrT year-on-yesr
compansons, These are considared nan-GAAZ

firancial measJres.

Arecaonciliagnon of these 1ot
te found Iin note 26 of the notes to the financal

the share price and may not reflect changes 1in the
fuil market value of assels cr husinesses owned by

the Groap

A numrber of acquistions were mace dunng the

year, inciuding nine oparat onal reserve power cies,

a waste o energy site under construction, a

[elely’ an ready wind farm i Australig and

Lct
severnteen solar rooftop sites under construction,

Shiortly after the year end, n July 2022, we sold

Darlington Point, & large satar sitein Australa

statements. ‘

“ P To supcort contrived expansion, we had oLt up
The financia. staterments show asters at Cost, as sucn cash reserves at year end of £25€m whicn included
they ao not reflect the future value that we expeci to 2 large cazshinfiow of £97m frorm placing externa.
darive from these businesses To that exient I orefinancira in Darlingtor Poirt onor tc sale
accounting performance may differ materally frorm

{restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £ 000 %
Revarue 711,830 425 302 677%
EBITDA 194 916 104,036 87°/

Proft {Ioss) bw-c)rp tax 47, 604 (22 663) 2e7 “O‘V
Lenging bOuP {net of provisio ms} 360,901 385 512
Cam 256,415 172 478
Met deot 793,169 699,440
het assats 2,219,448 1,887,842 331,607 18”/

Financial performance

Cveral.. the Group has reparted a profit bofore tax of
£47 6 for the year erded 30 June 2022, which 1z a
£70 3m improverment on the pnor year (2021

£22 7 loss restated) Overall ERITDA increazed by
87% w £195m 2021 £104m restatec), which is
primarHy due to increased erergy generation as wel
as ircreased energy prices

FaioT=

Revenue increased by £287m to E712m (2021

‘Earnings before interest, tax, cepreciation and amorisahon

f£425) which was pregominantly orven by a 84%
increase in revenue within our energy division. This
arowtn s two fold, noregsed energy generalion
from having owned/operated one of our biomass
anis for the full year and a large zolar plantin
Aus:ral\a reaching comrmissioning, and a significant
INCrease N average ensrgy prices over the year due
to the misrnatch between suppily and demand,
exacerbated by the angoing conflict in Uk-ane.
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Group finance review

Revernue growin was stran
divis
ravenue from our renrem

est in our engrgy

o but we alsc saw a markec irprovernant i
ent villages Thiz par: of
ourded well fromn the

-19 pandem‘c

our business has rep
iockdowns requrec by ine Covid
response, seiling 41 urits in the year (an incraase of
52%) and ari increasing 0 revenus of £75m i

L20.4r (2021 £12 7
Revenue from cur lend.ng dvision saw a drop of
Z5% to EL2m (2021 ESTVrn) du

ioan ook over the year

210 a gmnaler aver JC__jL
cash was made aval'atle

to grows other parts of the business

Opergting expenses for the year werg 1 ling with
our expectaons, with the norease prirraray dn

py nNcreased ooeraling Coss N Sl IBre tivs or.
ii has exnar!deJ, Refnancng externg: deot to
i tre past two years has

ase ininteres Cosis of £2 b

f S DEA

3 this year is 2 proht ¢
recogrisec on ire sate of two wird farmrs in F riland
and a reda. saton of Bl &m of deferred consideranon
szod e pravicds years

Financial position
Coatnoed sharencicer nterest and investment has
1,888
z

seen ret assets grow to £2.219m (2027
erdes SC cune 2022

rectared) in the year e

issued 120m snares (2021 Om}- for a total

corsiderat o of £204 (20

cor"r:pa's-‘r-eﬁa rurters ircilce £2,39%8m of

o
£ WOk In Drngress
w.lnin the aore ard rouse su;tcirg d VS Ors Ouricar
pook rproperty wend’

2361 2021 E3m6mi)

regresenied 16X of met

cperating actvites decroased o Z42m i
Z342my wihich nas Desan ul
~ong an

el alon

d caoial raise

2 Dbus ness We have irvesied
ant\a‘ay nto the hbre croackans secor over

tre past four years which wil regune

expenditure over the next -5 years, nereasng our

wersificat:on acrogs secic s

o3

Of the cash hed at year ena, £211m was held in
cur energy, Nome buw{d:ng nd nore subsicanics

a
where there are 3 of corstructor ard

irfrastryciure pro'- Wway, requinrg case o

be readily avaiable for siage payments due in the

ey s tes, Of

Ir exCess Gf the compary’s net assets, -eflecting

elzgie ful.re INcorre sireams. ACCOUTIngG

(D
Q
&
[543
n
-
tn
]
==
[4v]

corventior requires that orly identfas

T SO e ac

named on the bal

cannot record the calzrce of e adeitional marxer

va.ue whics conrprzes tre fuldre profts that siies

zre exgected o celiver, The addricona. value in




o
it

3| GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

Sector performance

Energy

As econcom’c activity and global demand increased
throLgnout tne year, sc too did wholesale energy
praes cnven by movermnents in comrmodity prices,
which resalted n the overall rorease in revenue

earned Crois our enargy sites. These marke:

factors Nave resulted i+ an increass in reverua of

84% to £553m (2021 £322m)

Correspondingly, EBITDA alzo increases
E266m (2071 £126m restatec) reflecting the

operat rg costs roreased by EL30m to £327m

FY2022

Production
{(MWh

I T R Y RO LA MR R R RAS AR AR AL R ST R R B R 0 b bt ] b s e T SV R

Siomass 1,050,038

_arvlfitll Gas 240,226
Rocorye Power 403,355
554,858

851,214

)

stateq), partialy drver Dy increased
site costs winere F120m was ncurred at our

biormass sites ard £33rm at Gur reserve power sites,

a
the prices for raw materials Fave nereasad, on
averane by 69% que Lo an increase in the supnly
costs. The combined cost of sales for the reserve
power and biomass sites increased by £210m to
E217m (2021 307m) i should be noted that the

reverue generated oy the bomass a~d resery

ower sites increased py £1527 dunng the year to
F353m (2021 £i6Llmr)

FY2021
External
Availability

FY2021
Production
{MWh}

FY2zo22
External
Availability

3,099,690

R S T i e A

83 2%

avanomna gy se

84.6%

97.9% S76%

L

c
LA

$4.2%

o)
(%)
L]

97.7%

G6.0%

881 241

90.5%

2,682,019
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Healthcare

Heairhcare coerations contributed £46m
(2021 £42m; o Grou-p revenues for the year
reflecting the imgact of increased revenwe in

Rangeford Sales of apariments at the retirement

vilages have renounced wel from the locdowns

reguirec by tne Covid-19 canderc respornse,

selling 41 umits In the year {an increase of 52% ‘rom

2025 anc increas
(2021 E12.7m)

iending

Revenue from lending decreased by £l4m o £42m

{2021 £57m

loar nock :‘cr

rinanly due o a cmaller average

D22, wrich resuiied na geceased

revenue strean for the yesr, "he tois

reducen by 6% o £ 261

gt the year erd {

286y This redacton in the loan Doox

sh o be available for opportunitias acress oxher
nl

ectors within the Group rmcluging acguisitio

e

COK A

nigher

corstrucoon. The make-up of tne loan b

shifted slightly where we have 1ssued a
nurriber of smaller loans within the recidentia!

seciorn as we. as more lager loans in the

develoomen: sector and the commercia

ERTDA for the le
of £8 7m from a profs

of neary £1rn n the prnor
year, T-is movenenrt reflects a orovision of £
tG reserve power sies

healthcare oan of Z14™

Fibre

As a relative ty rew SISO, 8

~ding aivision decreases oz loss

=5 35 tne

large :)"-erai:mg = .pn‘ 158

O
-
D

O
=
ol

o
(o]

Qo
S

o t V1S
EBIT DA loss of £55 4rm {2021 523 s toss), wiich
~e with
gevecomenial stage of the dession

S lir

exceciatlons ana

sets will be
which
cusde future value which s expected w0 be

As we puld these netwarks oul, the as

recogrised on the talance sheet at cost
gererated as the assets have been interally

tec. This s chifferent to the share gnce wherg
tre .Utu'e vaile expecied 1o be generates from the

assels 15 ncluded

Elivia mormes was acquired i May 2022 and has

trerefore Fad arrred imoact on the firan

Pc’ff‘r’ﬂ nce dunng tne year, The business i
r £78m revenue and £6.5m
EBITOA for the yvear ended 30 June 2023 Resu'ts
fro-r the first quarter of 2023 nd

perform

te the busires:

s broadly g 171 4ne witn expectai ors

Funding and liquidity

Cur swrateqy st secure iong-tenr “ranci o at

consarvative .evels from mansiream banks to
erhance relures from our rerewabie energy
busiressas, Al year end we had £2044m of
narc.ng with £441m of
headrcom avallab.e

external project ©

E

This enatles Us 1C acouire husresses trat the

market considers (o have stable characienstics
as predictable cost base, reverue sireams,

government incenives of proven tecmnslogy and as
LCh have ower returms hat w

WFoent for o

ur shizre



Group finance review

the current inerast rate volatinty We co

review financing arrangeren:s o ersura that thay

are corrpetitive and ogtirtized for the needs of tne
To ensure casn s managed in an asile

roanner, we fegl

business

“tain a flexble france facisy

s Ieet

which an be drawr down o repaid (o
imrriedia

e blsiness ne

Looking ahead

The Group has rebounces well from the
the Cavig-19 pandemic and has ouperformrad
exsectatiomg. Whist the current economic outleok

affects of

s one of challenge arnd uncertanty, we anticinate

minimal impac cLr reslits due o ihe
credictable revenue strearns ard cost base, anc
essential rature ,fouractqu Coupled with the

Lo 2Cross the pusiness,

diversiication wc have bhu
we are positioned strongty for “hese trbulent

times

alzrte|

rattert on o e twin
rest rates and surging
lendirg ard portfol'e
of the

likely 1 remain for the

We continue (O pay particu
challenges of rising 'nte
inflation - Lot in terms of
management, Thase rends impact all areas
Groun’s business and are
foreseean:e future, so we remain d.sciplined in aur
irvestmert approach, continuing o monitor the
aking a prudert approach to

situatior carefuly and t

any currert ancd emerqing risks.

We are positive anout the continued oppertanity
for growth and contirue to believe that the
biisiness 15 positoned well 7o take advantage of
R opportunitics across its
rgy, lending and house building

L.sned in the marxet and
coninue to make excellent progress with rebust

future growt core business
areas Ere

oparanons are well esiab

performances in the new hinancial year. In line with
our planred strategy, since the year end we scld a
rin Austral'a for a srrail profn, with

oyad Irto rew cpocrtuniies

large solar f2

proceeds beng

redepl

Deploymeant into fibre confinges to ol out in line

w th exceciat ons and tne Group has Nnow passed

mcre than 250,000 homes by our fiore networks,

Sales activity In our healthcare civis.on remams

trong, with nearly 40% of anrual sales sudaet
already comrpleted or reserved across ail s wes as at

the end of Sepiember

Arrourced with.n t'f“e auturnn statemert as part of
the 2023 Finanice Bul, the LK Governmert will
enact a 45% winafall levy {Electricty Generator

Levy” or "EGL) on wholesale

reveryes it excess of L75/MMWn This s expected ©
apply to the Groug from 1January 2023 to 32
Maren 2028 The exact legislation will Ge published

in mid-December 2022, cut pased or the inital

energy market

release an rnpact analysic nas peen cerformed
as at 30 Septerger 2022, We esumate the Impact

to be a drop in valuation of approxmately £45m
for the sites affected, which contripuwed to 4
2 1p decrease in the share price t2 1770p

Cecember 2022,

We expect 1o generate strong oper

arng returns
from our estabished divisions for the coming years,
N asdit'on to the anticipated cutflows “or cur

construciion phase assets. The nealthcare and

fibre divisions are well Into their bu:ld shase ir bna
with our long-term strategy and we arwticioate
Strong returns over the next fve 1o seven years

unor reaturty

PS Latham
Dhrecror
i€ Decerrber 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

For a suramary of the Groug's resuits, refer te the

Groun finance rev ew on page 23

The directors have not recommerded payment of
a anvidena (2021 ENIl

.

Tre draators of
curing the

financial

The 46?"“'”‘0’"\)/ whro were in ofice
year ena up to tre date of agning the

EEMEnts were
25 Latharn
K Willey

-
FG Bariow

[ Arthur laopcirted 1 July 21

Refer Lo note 23 ¢ tre Notes C the financial

Sale

S

Refer to the Sirategic Reporion page €

Refer to t-e Straiegic Report o page 12,

The Group's cojectives and polic'es on finandial ns<
manager-ent inciuding informat'con on the
exposurs of the Group to credit ris<s, Houdity 1 exs
ard market risks are set outin note 21 to the
friancial statements The Group's principal raks are
set out in the strategic report on page 16.

\s cermitiee by secton 424¢ (1) of the Comoaries
Aot 2006, the directors nave elected To disc.aose

rformation reguired to ber ine directors renort

[
i
72
(]
a3
)
(o}
\_j
g
=5
o
,,
QD
M
A3}
Rl
[oR
E_
[
jos
[
=
_)
&"
™~
0
O

e
erdeavolrs to condact its

e Grous
bus ness wilk rtegrity, in an ethica., professionat
znd resgcons e manner, treaing our emp.oyess,
CUSICIErS, SUDDISrs and parness with courtecy

Apclicat one for employment oy dsaoled gerscns
are given full ard far consderauor foral
g 1o trer particaar aci tades

ara acities (:.'"iCLJ‘G 3 oerzon becore dianies

b le
made (o e meman £

alternat ve rarting as necestaty

{
i
h
|
i
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Wa fuliy realise that our emgloyees wish o be
n‘crmed and consu'ted on matters gffecting therr
work and to be nvolved in protlem-solving affecting

their cwn arsas of interast ard responsibilty.

The Groug s frmiy committed 70 a policy of gooo
communicator at allieveis and we air to establ sh
a climate which consanily encourages the open
flow of nformation ard ideas.
ricludes monthly tear briefngs at g .ocal leve. and
the: puclicatnon of monthly key parformance

Presently ths

MUICEWors

neath and sz

c covering autout, Cperatng costs and

The Grourn has in place an agreement with Octogus
Imvecstments Limrmted [0 prov do ervices ¢ the
Groug covenng oparational oversigrt,

acrministration, company scoretar al and company

o

_oum:r'.g

The Beoard acopted a formal environmental. social
and corporate governance ("ESGT policy an
30 Septemier 2020 Tne G

~Tits busirass, in a marner that i

SrOLp recognises e
need to condu

responsible (o the enviro~ment, wherever possible,

As a low energy s e Compary has elected not

to disclose cata on itz energy and carbon Lsage.
Fern Tradng Limited is the only Company in the

Group that meets the report‘ng criteria and
therefore no nformation is provided for the Groun
as a2 whoie

The Groun's has an Art-Bribery Poboy which

ntroduced robust procedures 1o ensdre full
compliance witn the Bribery Act 20L0 and to ensure
that the nighest standards of professionar ethical

conduct are ma.ntaineg.

In accordance with the recomemendauons of The UK
Corporate Covernance Coae, the doard has
considerea the arrangements it place o encourage
staif of the
corcerns, in confidence, wabin trer orgarisaticn

Group or manager of the Group e rase
anoul possbie rmpropreties ir maters of financal
reprriing or other matters. It s satisfied that adeguate
arrangements are in place o allow an ndependert
Tvestgaion, and follow-on achon where necessary,
to taxa place within the organisaus

We gre committed to acung ethucaly anc witk:
mtegr oy ¢ all our gusinass cealngs and
relationships and to imelementing and enfcroing
effectve syitermns and ¢
slavery 15 not &
business ar ‘rany of oJr supply chams,
with our obligations under the Modern Slavery Act
2015 We expect the same high siardaras from all
of Qur contractors, supplers and other busiress
partners. As part of our contracting procasses, we
o comply with the Moden

antrols to ersure modern
king place anywnere In our Gwn
consistant

expect our supplier
Slavery Act 2015

The directors are respons:ble for pr
Anruat Report and the finan
accordance with agpi cable law ana regulation

esanng the
clal starermneants in

Company law reguires the aireclors to pregare

financ:ai staternants for each finarcia: year. Urder
that iaw the directors mave preparad the G
Company financial statements in accordance with

Group and

Urnited Kimgdom Generaly Accepled Accounting
Fractice \.Urmecj Kingdom Accounrt ng Standards,
comprising RS 102 "The Financat Reportmg
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and apclicabie law} U-der company aw

tae directors mist not approve thie financial
staternants unless tiey are satisfied (rat they give a
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

true ang fair view of the state of aTairs of the Group
and Company and of tne proit or loss of the Croup
and Comoany for that pericd. In preparing the
fnancial statements, the directors are requ red to:

o select sutasle accoortung pol.oes and then apply
therm consiziently,

+ state whether applicable United Kingdom
Accounung Sandards, comprisng FRS 102, have
beer followed, subject tc any material departures
disclosed arc explaned in the frnancia

estirnaes that

ng
are regsorable ard prudem. arid

« prepare the fina~cat statements on the going
cancern basis ur“l 55 it ¢ inappropriate
presume that the Group and Company wit

continue N ousimess

Trne drectors are also resoonsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and Compary and Fence

of
for taxing reaconabie steos for the ocreventon and

&N

aetectior of fraud and cther irregu anues

The drectors are respons

vle for <eepng aceguate
accountng recoras that are sufficent (o show anc
exalain the Grou

cisclose win reas

financial position
enabl em o @Nsare tn
comp it t~e Companies Act 2

The drectors are responsiole for the marterance
and integrty of the Corpary's weosite Legisiation
in e Uniteg Kingdem goverring tre nregaraion
ana g ssemnal on of Francial statements may d-ffer

from egislal or in other junsdictionrs,

As permitted by tre Articles ©f Association, the
Airectors have the beneSt of an incemnity wnich is
a qualifying third-oarty incemnity provision a
definad by section 234 of the Comparies Act 2006
The indemrity was i1 force throughout the last

)

ananciat year and s correnily in forces.

n the case of eazh drecior n office at the date the
a

= 50 far as the director g awars, there 2 No reevant

bt information of whiek the Groug ang

Carmpany's auditars are uraware, and

« they have ek

t
to have taken as a cirecror in order 1o ma«<e

thermszelves aware of any relevant audis

nformation and to establish that tre Group and

Compary's auditers z2re aware ¢f thal information
Th s confirmation s given and should be inerpreted
i accordance with the provisions of section 428 of
the Comparies Azt 2006

rnst & Young LLP having been apoointed in 2022,
have indicaxed ther wilingness 1€ pe reapponted
for ancther ter~ and wil ce proposed for re-
apocintment 1= accordante wth secuon 485 of 1ne

\_/Om},'ﬁn 5 ACT 2006

\J}
o
3
3
2
G
i
o
o
7
[N

Tre Directors resort wa: B
Directors on 15 Decemiber 2022 aro signed onits

benall by.

PS Latham
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Cpinion

We have audied the financial staterments of Ferr

Trading Lim.ted {'th Company ) and (5

subsidianes {the Grr\up for the year ended 30
ne 2027 whc
ompret ﬁrwséve Incerme. tne Group and ©

e Haren:

mprrse e Groun Satement of
Compary Ba ance Sheel, { hf Group Staternent o‘
Casn Flows, the Group arc Parent Siatement of
Cranges ir Egquity and the related notes 1to 29
ncidding a surnmary o significant aczounting
colces The financal reporting framewori that has

can applied i ther oreparation s applcabie law
and Urneed Kingeom Accounting Stendards
nducfmq FRS 107 "The Finarcial Renorting
Standard acpcabe in the L and Recublic of
Ireland” (United K ngdorm Generaly Accegted
Accounting Practice;,

In our cpn.on, the inarc al statermarts.

* give atrue and fair v ew of the Group's and of the
Parent Comopany’s affairs a3 at 30 June 2022 and
of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

» have been oroperly prepared ir accordance wiih
Urited ¥ ﬂgdcm Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractce and

v have Deen prepared in acoardance with the

equirerrents of the Companies Azt 2006,
Basls for opinion

We conductes our audit :n accordance with
internat.onal Standards on Auditng (UK {1SAs (UK
ard app.cab.e law. Our responsibilities under thiose
standards are furtner described in the AL ditor's
responsitilites for the audt of the financial
staterments section of our report We are

indeperdent of the Group ir accordance win the
ethical recuirernaents that are reevant to our 2udit of
thz financal staternents in the UK, including the
FRC's —thical Standard, and we have fulfilled cur
cother ethica. resporsibilities n accordance witk

these requirements

A “T< \

We believe that tne audi evidence we have
obtained is sufficiert and acpropriate (G provide a
bas s for our opirion

Conclesions relating to golng concem

P

croents, we have
uze of the gong
concern bazs of accounung in the preparation of

trie financial statemenrts is aporaprate

N audiirg the financiat sta
concluded that the arregtory

i on the work we have performed, we have

rot dent fed any material uncertaintes relating to

events or condit:ons that Jndwxdbalty or collectively,
may cast significant doust en the Graup and Parent
Cormpany's abidty to continue ai a going concern
for a period of twelve maonths from whien the

financial statements are authorised for issue

Our responsikilities and the responsik lites of
tne d reclors with respect to gainig concern
are described in the relevant sectons of thig
recort. However, because not all future events or
conditions
guaranee as 1o the Group's asility to ©
gong concern

can pe precictea, this statement s not a

ninue as

Other information

The other informaton compnses the nformation
ncluded ntne annual report, other than tre
financial statements and our auditor's report
tnereon The directors are respornsitle for the other

nformaucn contanad wathin the annua: report.

Our opinon o the Bnancal statements does nct
cover tne other information and, except 1o the
extent otharwise explicity stated in this report, we
Co not express any form ¢f assurance conclusion
trierecn.

Cr responisibiity 5 to read the other infermation
and. in doiqg so, consider whether tre ather

nformazion is mateqdally ‘rcongistent witk e

financial statements or our <nowledge obtanad i
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

tne course of the audil or otnerw.se appears to e

maternally misstated If we dentfy such mazena

IrCOTSIStEnc es or apnarent matenal missiatements

we are required 1o determ ne wnether this gives rise
fnanciai

I nased on thie work we

to a matenal msstaterent inthe
staternents themseglves
cluce tnat thers is &

have pﬂrrcrrv‘eH we Con
material mis e other information, we

are FEC‘UH’E
We have nothung to report i this regard
Opinions on other matlers prascribed
by the Companies Act 20086

N, baseg on the wor

audt

N our chinio (urderiaxen i

tra course of the

+ the nformation giver 0 the Strareg:c report arc

the irectors’ report for the financ:al year

which the financal staternents are prepares s

cons'stent with the financial staterrents, anc

o the Strategic renot ana Direcors repart nave
bear pr‘epared I zccordance with ap

iegal reguiremer.s

Matiers on which we
raport by exception

are reoguired to

In the tight of the krowledge and understanding of
tme Groeup ard the Parert Company and its

environmen: oota ned ir the course ©

we have ~¢!iderthed rateria! misstatenenis ir
t~e Strategic report or Drectors’ renor:,

We ha Ve NG rrmg to rep

SOULires Us W0 repor W you f,

~— oy
Comgan es ACT 2005

e certan disclosaras of Directers remunerationr

scecified by law are not made, or

= we have not received @il tne inforation and
exparations we requie for our audil

nsibilities of diveciors

As explaired more fuly in tne Directors
resgconsibilties statement set out on peges 29 ard
35 tne Drrectors are responsile for the preparation

statermrents erd for bei EHI

afrue and fair view, "ﬂd for such
the Direciors determine is

* fnancia

rmisstatenent, whetrer gue 10 fraud or eror,

in prepaning the in staterrents, the Directars

anc

are responsiole for assessing the Grous s and the
b |\’ F T Conting

concern, disclosirg, as applicabie, matter: reiated

Parent Company's 2 e as a 4oing

to go'ng concern
basis
irtend W "guic

Corpany oo
realistic alternative

anc uzing the going csncern
of accounting unless the Draciors either

cate tre Groug of the Parent
~ease oneratisrs, or have no
autto do

LG

Auditors responsibilities for ths audi

of the Hoancial statements

Our cojectives are to oolain reascratsle assurance
a whole

ethar duz

about whether the Srascia. statemnerts az a
fres framr matena, misstatement,
o frauc

are

o errar, and to Ssue an audeor’s repor:

that ing uses Sur oprian. Reaso

a b gh level of assurance but

[Tatel

an audir Zucted na

wilh alvsays cerect a marer a\, mMsstatemert wren it

Misstalements cas ase from frawd or error
t




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited 3

§X§§,&§§a§;§§sgﬁ az to what extent the s« obtaining an understandhing of policies anc

sudit was considered capable of procedures noplace regarding complianc

detacting rregularities, including with laws anc regu.ations, includ ng hcw :

fraud compliance with such pelicies s monitored

Irreguanues, Includ ng frauc. are instarces of non- | anc enforced; obtaning an Lnaerstand ng of

compliance with laws and regulat\or':s‘ We design ranagement’s process foridentfying ang ‘

oprocedJres in line witn oJdr respensioitties, outlined respending Lo fraud risks, inctuding prograrms 1

atiove, to dewecr ireguiarities, including Faud, The are contrals establisned 16 address nsks

risk of not dereciing a materia. m sstaternent dus o icentified, or otherwise prevent, deter and
: detect frau'd and how sea o rranagerment

fraud is higher than the risik of not detecting one :
: itors Se pro ns and conrols;
esulting from error, as fraud may nvelve deldberate & ONIters nose programs and conuals,

CGHC%WG-"‘T by. for example, forgery orintentioral . review of board meenng reinutes in the penacd
misrepresentations, or through collusicn The : ana up 1o date of signing
extent to which our procedur =5 are capable of

detecting rreqularities, mcluding fraud ¢ detaled

: We assessed the suscentbility of the Group's
: finarcial statements to material misstatemant,

pelow However, the primary responsio’iity for the

. o O ‘ ) : nctuding hoew fraua oight occur by holdirg &
orevention and detection of fraud rests with both :

) . AIsCussioH within the audit fearm which ncludedd.
those charged with governances of the entity ard

Tanagement ! « idenufication of related parties,
Our approach was as ollows: : « understancing the Group's business, the
. ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ i contral envircnment and assess g the inherent
+ We obiained an understarding of the legal and : - i q
. : i risk for relevant assertions at the sigrificant
regulztory frameworks that are applicabe o the o ‘
: account level ncluding discussions with

Group and determined taat the most significart :
, rmanagenent 1o gain an andersianding of
are those that relate to reporting framework (FRS

) those areas of tne fingncial statements which
102 and tre Comparnies Act 20086) ¥ : ot :

were susceptibie to fraud, as identifhed by
« We Lnderstocd now Fern Tradimg Limited iz managerment; and

corrpying with those frarmeworks by making

: » ccnzidered the controls that the Group has
established (o addrass risks identified by

erguines of rranagerment, those charged with
governance and those responsible “or iegal

rd complance procedures as to any fraud -isk
framewaork within the entity, ‘ncluding whetkear

the entity o that ctrerwise seek {0 prevent,
: geter or detect fraud ircuding garing an
urgerstanding of the entity leve, contros and

a formal fraud nsk assessmrent is campleted We )
polic s that the Group epplies.

corchorated our engu ries througn review ¢f the
following documentaton o perforrance of the « Based on thus urderstard ng we des.gried cur
ollowing procedures, aud T procedures tGacentify non-corrp.ance

L . with sach laws and regulascns. Our proceduras
- cblaining an understanding of entty-leve: HEnaws LAaeTis e

conireis and considering the influance of the

rvelved testing of journar entries through

. ) jodrnat anaytics tools, with focds o maniuzl
control envirornment:

5 haa
irreist Lhatithos
ey

e
ke “iiﬁ
L5E gs .5 '

|
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited
journals, large or unusuat fransactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senjor management
and those charged with governance ragarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance
or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financiat

statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the !

audit of the financial statetments 1S located on the

o the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law. we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body. for our

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Financial Reperting Council's wabsite at
wwwifrc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibitities. This

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)
description forms part of our auditar’'s report.

for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

. Belfast

This report is made sofely to the Company’s 20 December 2022
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state
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Group profit and loss sccount for the vear ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
e ) e e e ..., EO00 . EDOO
o e ot b Be s A 85 R e e e o 711830 o £ s s
Cost of saes {410,883) (221,277}
Grossproﬁt 300947 204025
Adrinistrative expenses {258,251)
Or.&);eratixng profitl(loss)' ' S - 2 HWH‘WZZ,GQGM
Ctrer ircome 1 3,550 9454

Income from other fixed asset invesiments 5,249 449

Note

Share of aperating profir in joirt venture — 1755
29,533 28,568
130 997
Interest payaile 3ra sralar CNarges & (33,554) [26.067)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 47,604 22663
Tax on orobt/{loss) 7 {16,294) {8,349)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 31,310 (31,012)

Profit cn disposat of subsic anas and Joint venture

@ m

Othier mterest recerab o and sirnilar Income

Attributable to Fern 37.932 (27.005)
Minority interest (6,622) (4,007)
31,310 131,012

Allresults relae to continang activines Note 26 details the pnor penod aejustments.
Group statement of comprahensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021

£000 £000

Profit/(loss) for the financial year S 31,310 (31,012)

Other comprehensive income

Maverrents -n cagh flow Pedges 77,985 44,683
Fore.qn excharge gain/lloss) 18,561 (333)
Other comprehensive income for thquear . « 96’546» o 44650 _

Total comprehensive income for the year - 777127,856 o 15,638

crnoretranslation of subsidianoes

Attributable to
+ Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
{6,622) {4007)

127856 13638

trolling interests
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sheet a5 at 30 June 202

Giroug balangs

S0 JUNE 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
MCte E'QOO E OOEJ
leedassets v L e e b s L L amkr s et oL gmetna e A 1 oyt s 4o % e e RS R 1 R e o
Intangibite assets b 557,708 576,739
Taraible azsets 5 1,893,430 1581682
Irvestrrents 10 35,452 11.000
- 2486590 215921
Current ;s"sets i T
Stocks 12 184,479 4,711
Debrors L ncluding E138m 12021 F18 1m) 15 623,161 508,002
" 256,415 72478
""" 1064085 865191
Credltors mounts fallm;due \mthm one year - LA (256,152)““““» EDaC )
Net current assets - . ) 807,903‘ S 665 13/
Total assets less current Itahllltles o _,8J2.553w
Credltors amounts fallmg due aﬂer more than one year 15 m “903;335{ ’
Prowsnons forllabllltles S .;77 (41.3?2)
Net assets 2,219,448 1887392
Capital and reserves
Called up share canita, 12 161,662 149676
SPare Drermilm acoount 364,882 173118
rerger reserve 1,635,569 1,440,257
Cash flow hedge resarve 63,006 (14,579
T and loss atcours {2, 770) 136,043
2,222,349 1884121
2,901) 5721
2,219,448 1887842

PS Latham

roved by the Soars of dreciors on
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Company baiancs shoot as 2t 30 June 2022

2022 2021
£000 ‘000

Fixed assets
‘ ey

+

2,539,978 216,366
Current assets ‘ -

Cevtors 14 39,888 50,383
Cask at bank ars in hans 11 6,422 523
S S as310 '

Net current assets 45,861 28,982
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets 2,585,839 2145348

A 0 BT Ak BRE RSB AR b P 1RSSR o A ¢ s

10 2,539,978 2,116,366

51506

Creditors: amounts fafling due within one year 14 {449) (22,524)

2,585,839 2145248

Capital and reserves

Calied up share caprat i 161,662 149676
Share proeiurm accours 364,882 173,118
Merger regerve 1,986,457 1,791,145

[£9)

Frof.tand loss account 72,838 31409

Total shareholders’ funds 2,585,839 2,145,348

The Compary Fas elected to take the exernpuon under secton 408 of the Camparies Act 2006 not to
nresent ne Company profit and foss accaurt The profit for the financal pericd deall with i the financial
staerrents of the Company was £236,742,000 (2021 loss of £157,504,000;

These Tnancial statements o pages 35 to 92 were aporoved by the Boaro of cireciors on 16 Decerber 2022
=] p Y
ard are sigred on theair behalf by

PS Latham
Director
Registered number 1260163%
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Group stalement of changes in equity for the vear ended 30 June 202

e
[

2022

N

b

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
{restated) {restated) funds
{restated)
. ) £'000 £'060 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balsrce as a1 2.4 138435 - 1635569 (57,827) (41185 1668082 9570
PRSP RECEAG R
Pricr patod - 3875 13,828 17703 - 17,703
agiustmients inee 76) - B ' [ ' ’
talarce as at 1 Jul - .
Do 138435 - 1635569 (53,962) (27356) 1585585 9570 1696255
- - - - (27.005) (27.005) {4.0071 {31,012)
- - - 44983 - 44,982 - 44983
- - - {323 1323) - (333}
- - - 44984 {2330 44,650 - 44,650
- - 44,983 [27.338) 17645 14,307 13.6%8
Nor-controiing
rrarest ar<ing o9 - - - - 1,831 1831 {1,847) 1)
SR VIS LI G0
- - {195 312} - 195,312 - - -
11,685 173148 - - - 184,803 - 184 803
(£44} - - - 16,399) (5,843] - 16,843)
143676 173318 1440257 {14,975 136,045 1.884.°.21 3721 LA887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118  £440,257 {14,979} 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,952 (6,622) 31,310
Changes in mariet
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
toss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

s
P

i
¥

et

P

W i53




- AL CTATE T CRID IO S
4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders” interest,
funds
£000 £000 £000 E£'000 E'000 £000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive _ _ _ _
income/(expense) for 77,985 18,561 96,546 96,546
the year
Total comprehensive
income/f(expense) for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger - 195,312 - {195,312} - - -
reserve
Shares issued during 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 12,770) 2,222,349 {2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 detzils the prnicr ceriod adjustments
Company statement of changes in aguity for the vear ended 34 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves andloss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
Balan.e at mcoqoraia: - - - - -
aes for the B - - - 157,504 (157,504}
Utlizat o ¢ - {195,312) 195,312 -
Tots compre ~ - {195,312) 27808 157504
Sharzs 133ae0 Cuirg the yaar 150,120 173,118 1986457 - 2309695
Crarps cancelled duning (444) - - [6,39%! 6 }
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312} -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
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2022

Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
Mote 2022 2021
£'000 £000

Cash flows from operatmg actmtles

Profivfiless) o tre financiat year attnbatacle to the owners of e parent 37,932 (27,005}
Adjustments for:
Tax on proavloss) 7 16,294 8,349
Interest recevablie and sirtiar income & {130} (957}
Iriernst payable and other smilar cnarges 5] 33,554 36068
Profit on aisposal of subsidaries and jont veniure 8 (29,532) (28.568)
[Ncome from jo.nr verwure - {1,755
income from fixed assel investrants (5.249) (449;
APCrusaton @nd rnpairment of iriarg et ansats 5 45,762 37704
Lepracal on of mngiole fixed assers G 104,802 84,697
Non-cash siaf” coste 3,040 8875
Movements or deratives and fore g exchangs {18,044) ns.788
Iroresss nostock {19,829%) (5,701)
ncreascl/cacrease in ceblors 31,022 249374
Ircrease/(gecreasel in Crecions {173,956) 6871
Nori-controlag miteress 1% (6,622) 4,0607)
25,853 1750
Net cash generated from operating activities 41,897 341017
Cash flows from investing activites o
Purchase of subsdhary undertaxings inaf 6* cash acguread) (52,377) (221,987
Saw of subsidiary ungdertakings and jont venture 101,778 34,503
Purchase of argitle assets (322,446) (110457}
PLrongse of ~argble assets {7,222} (879
Poronase of uriisted investmerts (124,203} (29617}
Sale of ursted mvestmerts it 105,000 20133
Irterest received & 130 597
lrcorme from Jont vent.re - 1.077
ﬁé{cash used in |nvest|ng a-&l-\-r-stnes ------------- 7 A(2997340) o (3’0\) 226)“w
Cash flows from financing activities - 7
Proceeds frors £ranoing 201,719 -
irterest pad (32,319) (35.552)
(32,013} (212676}

e 203,750 184,359

R - 6,399

' 341,437 | (70.268)
Net ldecrease)/mcrease in cash and cash equavalents 83 594 7 7 { 54‘75 7;7)
Cash anQ £asn eguva.en's at the ceg nrrg of i 172,478 206,688
£«tharge ga w5 o0 2ash and 2557 equ valents ) - 7243 367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year h 11w o U_Z;G 4i.!’;_ T ‘7.4 478_ )

Note 25 detals the oror per od ad ustmerts,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Limited {the Company) 15 a private company limited by snares and incorgorated on 14 Ma;
+ ¥ ¥

2020 The cormpany 15 dormiciled in Emcla-m the United Kingdom and registered unger Company narmoer
12601636 The address of the registered office s al £tk Fioor, 33 Aoiborn, Lonaon, Engiang, ECIN 25T,

Statement of compliance

The Grour and individuan firanciat statemerts of rerm Tradirg L imited have been prepared in camp,ance
with Uritea Kirgdom Accounting Standards, nciua ng Nnanaal Reporting Standard 102, 7he Financial
Reporting Stardard acpacable i the nited K; rlngfr‘ ang the Repubic of reland '-R5 1077} and the
Compantes Act 2006

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financ.al statements Have beer prepared on a going concarn basis, under the nistoncal cost conventon,
& modifed by the recognition of certain financial assets and liab Lties reasures at far value, and in
accordance with the Comparies Act 2006 ard applcabie accounting stardards in the United Kingdom Tre

principal accountng oolces, whicr wave been apcled consistently throughout the year, are set cust below

The corsolidaied finamcial staternents include the resulis of all subsdianes owned by Fern Trading Limitea
as stea 1m note 29 of tne annual financal statements, Certa.n cormpanies of these subsidaries, which are

lsted in note 25, have taker the axempt or: from an audit for the year ended 30 Jure 2022 perrmitted oy

tor 4764 of Comparies Act 2006, In order to alicw these subsidianes (o take the audit exampton, the
parent company has giver a statutory guarartee, nlire with se n 479C of Companies Act 2006, of ail
the outstanding net lianilities as at 30 Jure 2022,

LGoing concern

The Groun's ana the Company's busness activities, together with the factors likely to affect ts future
development, performance and posiion are set out tre Strategic Report or pages 4 1o 14 Tre financiat
position of the Group, its cash flows, lguid-ty poston ara borowng faclities are described n the Anancal
review On cages 23 to 27 The principal n3ks of t1e Groug are set out on pages 16 w1

The Directers gerform an aninua. going concern review that considers the Groug's ability to meet its

finarcial obligations as they falt due, for a per od of at ieast twelve monins after the date that the financial
statements have been signed
Due to the chalenging marxe: conditions managemen: have performead an assessrmant 1o deerming

wnether there are ary matens! un er:aéﬂ-.fes ar'sing that could cast significant coubt on the ao ity of the

Group to continue as a gong concermn. No significant issues have been noted ard as a consegquence, the
direcicrs beaeve that the Group 15 well piaced tc manage Its business risks successfully dn—sute the current

uncertain economc outloak
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Statement of accounting policies

In reaching this conclusior the Directors nave reviewed 1he finandial mpact ¢f the urcortanty on tne

Sroup's baance saest, profit and osz ard cask flows witn specific consicerat on g ven o the following

A reverse stress el was performed on the base : wltin

nsiks to the Groum, lauidity positior The tes Wed evern i an u@rke;y scenaro of a sigreficant redvl_d"n

of reveniue of 46%, tre Groufr 15 aoe to sustar d meet all Labilites as they fa
for atleast a year from me date of sigring t-ese Anancial staterments whan ut Lsing the avalable

es within e Group.

3

e Group has a naryber of financng faciizies that contain covenants recu.nng the Group 1o mainiain
specified financial ratcs ard comply wilh ceralr other finarciel covenars These francial covenants are

tested at least guarterly, and., at the date of this regort, the Group is 1m comolia~ce wath all ifs financial

ovenants Stress tests on reasorably plausible scernanos such as a s grmcant reduction in EB TDA of 84%

over Lre hgve teen used 1o atsest e covenant requrements for the atzast thie nexs twelve morths ard

et even under tne 21ress test

Ne going cormgern par od

At 30 June 2022, the Group nad avaracle case of £256m and headrcom ava lable of L2441 incluaing a
ar, with the remarmder

of ES55m payable in more than
et oulin Nowe 16 Loam nd 3orrowings

revoly. g credit facn: \t/ FE2I0m ekt of £88m s due to mare 1 |
o

cdites, repaymer: dates ard undrawn amounts arg

o

Hey accounting adgement ana eshimates have been made wits cons desator gven to the current

econoric oLtook Kay estmates .nclude loan recoveraoility, valuar o of work in progress,

decomrrissioning provsont, i parnant of gocdwill and investraents, busimess cormumatons end slige
accounting. Details ace set out on pages 50 w0 52

ased on the above assessmient Of currenl eronoMic CONAITIoNS and the mpact on tne Group's firandial

e
pos Lon, aguidity ard financizl Coverarts, tre directors nave concuded triat the Group ard Company has

adequate resources {C ConUnNUE I SCera

2nal exslance for the next 12 mantns. mus, they continue to

adopt the gong concen Bass of accountng in preganng the annwal franaig statements

Exermptions for gualifying entities under FRS 102

RS I0Z2 alows & quat ifying etty Ceriair ascoture exaempiions, suoject w certa n conditions, whicr rave

been compiied waith, nct ;dif;q ncafcator of, ang no chjection to, the use of exemptions oy the Cormpary

ne Cempany has iaken acvartage of the slowing exaroiiong

. from preoarng 3 staterrert of cast flows or e

)

a5 5

stalerent of cash flows, included in tmese frarcal 5i2 23 178 LomMuany's ash fows,

1 fromr tre Bngrciat ostruerent cisclosures, redired uader FRE 102 caragrap-s 10 25 10 1L 484 and

Caragrashs 12.25 10 12 29 as the niorraton s provizeo s
o

~ .

i from disciosn

(Al
Al
=~

oarzoranh
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Statement of accounting policies

Basls of consolidation

Tre consclidated financial statements nclude the results of Fern Trading e ard all s subsidiary
undertaxngs made Jp to the same accodnting date All intra-group Dalances, rarsactions, mcome and
expenses are eliminaied in full or censclidation Tre resuts of subs digry Lndertaings acquired or disoosed
of durng tne penoed are ircluded o excLdec from the ncore staterernt from the effectve date of
acauwsiunn or aipesal

Al undartalnos cver win'ch the Group exercisas Conlrol, tong the powor to govarn the inancial and

uir

operat ng pelicies so as to obain benefts from ﬂ’%i activisies, are consolidated as zubs-diary undertakings
Where a subsidiory nas d-Jerent accounting policies to the Group, adjustments gre made o those
subsic ary financial statements to apply tre Group's accourting policies when oreparing the consol dated

finarcal statements

Ary subsidiary under-ak’ rgs or associates sold or aoguired dunng the vear are ncluded uo to, or from, the
dates of change of control or crange of sgnificent inf.uence respeciively.

wWhere the Group has written a put option over snares he'd oy a nor-contraling interest, the Group

derecoqrises tne non-controlling nterest and instead recogn.sed contingent deferred consideranon abiliny
witmin other payables for the esumatad amount likely 1o be paid to thrz afelas cortfcllmg Interest or exercice

of those opnons Tre residual amount, recresent'ng the difference hetween any consideration paid/oayable

zrid the non-contraang interest’s share oF net assers, is recognised a3 goadwil. Movements in the
estimated Labiaty after imitial recognition are ecognsed a3 goodwil

Forelugn currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Grous financial statements are presented in ooLnd sterang and rounded to thousands,

The Company's funciional ard presentaton currency 1S poLnd sterling and rounded to thousands

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using tre spot exchange rates at
the dates of tre transactions At each percd end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
closirg rate. Non-monetary itarns measured at histonical cost are translated using the excharge rate at the
date cf the fransacticn a~d non-rmonetary iterns measzured at fair value are messured using the exchange
rate wnen fair value was determined Fore.gr exchange gains and lcsses resulting from the settlerent of
transactions ard from the translat'or at penod-end exchange rates of monetary assets ard tabilities
dencminated :n foreign currencies are recogn.sed in the profit anda loss account,

Al fore'gr excharge gains and losses are presented In the proft and los: account within ‘agmirisratve

expenses’

ill. Translation
The trad'ng results ¢ Group undertaking:
5

are Tanslated imo oounas sterlng at the average exchange rates
for tme year. The as

arSiNG or acquiziucn, are translated at the excnange rates raimg at the year-end. Bxchange adiustments
ansing from the retranslation of opering net investmerts ard from the ranslation of the profits or losses

at average rates ars recognised in ‘Other comoranensive income’ and sllocated to ron-conuciing interest

S appfoor:ate

=75 ard liabilities of overseas undertaxirgs, includng gocdwill and fair value adjusiments
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Turnover

Tire Group coerates a number of classe: of puairess, Reveniue is cerived by the fo.owing

« Lnergy
Turmcver from the sale of electic'ty generated by soiar farms, wird gencrating assats, raserve power
planis arnd biomass ard landfill sites is recogrised on an accruals basisin ke penoc inwick itis
generated Reverue from long-term goveriment backed offtake agreements, such as te Rerewable
-

o

< cheme are accrued in the period = when it relares to Turaover fromi the
sae of fertlser by biomass ard ardfll bus resse

15 recognized or prysical dispatcn

» Healthcara
Turmovar 15 recogrised When ne signifcant ns<s and rewaras of ownership of retirenren
rassed o the buyer (on legal complenont the armount of revenue can be recognised re

the economic nenefits associaled with the transacton we. “.ow G the entity Turnover

g nornal

ased on the date the service s
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LFTIOVET T2 Dresernts arrangerment fees and nterest on loans prov'ded o customers, net of any value

sdoed ax Lcan nterest s re

ol
an accrual basis n ine with contraciua, terms of the lcan
o)

agrecrnert, Arrangement fes

yer e lifa of the oan to whch they reate.

Ltne farr ygive of the consderation received for nermet connectivity ana re'ateu
sery ces providea rtre normal course of business, ard s shown ret of VAT Turmover is recogmizced

ased o~ the date the service is provided
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from NoUsINg asscaliauon cortracts is recoarised by referonce o 172 vaiLe ©F work competed as a
proocruon of the tola. contract valle.
Emploves bonefits

ne Groug orovides JOING anTUa borus arrangernents pad rooday

Short- terrn heng

Y
exoense ~ine penod nwh O e sery Ce g rece e

A defred cortnpaticr plar s a pensior p.ac aoder whien the Group pays fxed contnburors inic a

separate echity Urcetne Comrout ons have ceer paic he Grous nas no furine” paymert cougalors
T—& CoMnoulors are reco ; 35 A7 GXDENSE W trey are aue ATnounis not ga d are shown n

pat - o ppnd et - i fad I
accruals in the oelancs v “om the Crouo i ingeperdently

|
i
i
|
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ifi. Share-based payments
Casn-settied chare-based payrnents are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. The Group

recoqnises a hability at e balarce sheet date basen on tese fal- values, taking into account the estimated

rumbter of Lnits that will actualy vest and the current proporticn of the vesting period
Cranges in the value of thig liabiuty are recogrised in the income statemert,

The Groug has no equity-settied arrangamernts.

Fleianve costs

rged @ the proft ard 1oss account ovar the termr of the debt using the eFective
sTue Costs are

Finance costs are C

interest method so that the amount charged s at a cornsiant rate on the carrying amount
intally recagnised as a reducton in the proceeds of the astocated capial instrument and released 1o the
profit and loss accownt over the terme of the debt

Lurrent and deferred tax

Tax is recognisad in the statement o .ncome and retained earnings, except t1at a change atinbutaole to an
item of ncorre and experse recognised as otner comprehersive income or o an iten” recogrised arecily
N egu ty 1s also recognised ir cther comprehensive incorme <r directly n egu by respectively

The currert inceme tax cnarge 1s caculated on the bass of tax rates and laws that have peen enacted or
substant vely enacten oy the balance sheot date 'r the counlries where the Company operates and
generaies noome

Deferred palances are recogrised in respect of all timing differerces that have crigiratec but not reversed
Dy e Balance sheet dale, except that,

« Tre racognition of deferred tax assets is limited 1o the extent that it s probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax I'ablities or other future taxable profits; and

« Any deferrec tax balances are reversed If and whern al condiions for retainmg asscciated tax allowances
nave been met,

Deferred tax balances are rot recogrisad in respect of perrnanent differences except in respect of Business
comoinations, when deferred tax is recogmseu on the differences between the fair va.ues of assets acquired
and the future tax deductions avallable for themn and tne differences between the fair values of uaoilities
aeouired and the amourt that w ll be assessed for tax Deferred tax s determined usirg fax rates and laws
that nave been enacted or subnstantively enacted oy the talance sheet dae

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accountad for by apolyng the purchase method

The cost of 2 business combmaticn s tne “air value of the consideration giver, laairtes incurred or
assumed and the equity instrurments issued plus the costs directly attnibutazie to the susiness combinat on
Where controi is achieved in stages tne cost s the consideration at the date of each ra=sacton

On acquisition of a business, far vatues are atinbuted o the identiab.e assets, habiutes and cortingent
&

3
hatnlities urless tne far value cannot o2 measured ral ably, in which case the value iz incarporated as

goedw L Where the farr valuz of conungent L ab ltes carrct be reliaoly measured they are d sclosed

on the same basis as otner contingert labities
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Goodw:ll recogmsed recresents ng excess of tne fair value and directy altrbutace s of the purcnase
comsw‘deratlon over the fair values 1o the Trous’s interest i the idertfabie net azsers, uanilities ang

conlingent habdities acquirad.

wa aeauls nor. goodwill s alocated to cash-generating dnits (CGUS) that are expected to beneht from

e comi nation

Goodw.llis amorused over its expected usefu

ex Iz which s -"eterm'me—c Bases onthe estimaed lifespan of
e assets acouired, Wrere the Group is unable 1o make a rellable estimate of useful Uf

amortised over a pericd not exceed ng ten years, Cocdwii is reveéwea and assessed for mparment
indicators on an a~nuat basic and any mpairment i< cnarged to the profit end loss.

oreciat.on Deprecisiion s orovided at ratas cal

0
heir estrnated resicuat value, over their expected use

comMmmences fre Land and asser

n ke codrse of conguction

are not deorec ated The estimate

N c*v ok 855813

Assets 10 the course of corstruction are stated at cost These assets are ~o! depreciated untl they are

avalab.2 for use

Wrere faciors, such as techrolag cal anvancerent or changes in rarket prioe, ndicate that resdual value

or userul life Fave cnanaged, tne resicua: vaiue, uzeful Ufe or deprecation rate are amenrded prosoectvely to

reflect the new circumstances. The asset

lﬂ

are rev.ewen for impa rrment i the atove faciors indicate that the

carryng amourt may be umpa.red

5 on disposas are determined by companirg the proceeds with -re CaTyiNg amount ang are
1T profit or loss

q

tatec ar costiess accumulated avmortizaton and accumulated imoarment (osces

ros cainulates. vzirg the strachi-one memnog, 2 aliccale the ceprecatie gmournt of the asses
to trer res dual vawies cver ther ezumigted uselu, lives, as 1o 1ows

word fary acaurred onacqu stien
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Where factors, such as changes in market price, indicate that residual value or useful ufe have changed, the
residual valle, useful Jfe or anortisation rate are amerdead prospechvely to reflect the new crcumstances.

The assets

‘\

are reviewed forimparment f the above factors mdicate that the carrying amount ray
be mpa req

b4

AEEOE
Az incepton the Group assesses agreerments that transfer the ngnt o use assels. Tre assessment considers
whether the arrangermert is. or contans, a lease aged on the sihsiance of trne arrangemeant and whether

the tegse snould be classified 35 either a finance lease o an operaing lease

isfer substaniialiy all the risiks and rewards incicental to ownersh'p are classified as

b
[aB)
Il
n
53]
9]
n

W
3]
[¥a)
]
~r
)
ot
Iy
o)
=
o
QJ
5
n

L

firarce leases. Fimance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fai- value of tre
e preciated over the sharter of the lease term and the estimated useful life of the asset

for impairment at each reporting date

Leasos that do nat transfer al the risks and rewards of ownership are Classified as operaling ieases

Payrents ander operalirg l@ases are charged 1o the orofit and 10ss accourt on a siraight-line sasis over the

pencd of the lease.

frnvestments

The Company holds investrents in a subsidiary at cost iess accumulated impa.rment |
mMpairment loss s wcsequent.y reversed, the carrying amaount of the irvestment 15 Increase
estimate of s recoverable amount, but only © e extent that the revised carrying amou
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment Loss been racog

ed inpror

pericds. A reversat of an impairment (0ss is recognised in the profit and i0ss accodnt,

{ash

Cast includss cash in hand and deposite repayab.e o~ dernand Restricted cash represerts cash for whick
the Groun does not have 1mmediate and direct access or for which reguiatory or legal requirements restrid
the use of the Cash.

Stocks

Raw materials, spare parts and consumables are valued at tre lower of cost and net realisable vaiue Where
recessary, a ovision is made for bsolele, slow-moving and defectve stock Costis determmined on the
frst-in, Frst-out (FIFO) method

[ stocks {(MBM and litier} are valued on an average ¢os: Basis over one to two months and provision for
unuza.e litter s reviewed mortrly and applied 1o off-sie stock

Fuel stock of straw has beer valued at the nstorcal cost per tenne of stravw A provision for unusatle straw
5 identified on an indivdual stack basis anc s reviewed rmonthly Stocks are used ona A3l in, first out

{"Fir Q" basis by age of straw

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost ard net realisable vaiue tc the Group

Stocks of pfo:‘)erty develooment work in pregress TWI=7 are stated at the lower of Cost anc ret reatisable
ect matenzls and, wnere applicable, girect iabour costs and those overreads inat
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Fave cear incurred 1N brm:mg the stocks to therr present locatio condition
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At egch reporiing date, an assesiment 1s made

“or rnpairmient Any excess of the carrying amount of

stocis over its eshimated selling pmcc

trrodgh the profic and 1Ics3s account

loss aczount

Aocrued nooms

t cutin the wan conracts Energy income s

Deferred income

Ceferred incorne s recognised in accordance with the terms set 0.t in the coniact Doferred incore s

releascd to e proft and loss account i the oencd @ wineh it relates.

Financial instruments

tons 1l ang 12 of P28 107w respecs of finangal instrumenis

chosen to adopt

tasses, includ: “g rade and oiner rece vap.es and Cash and nank calances ate intaily
S transacton proe, unless tre arangement constiutes a finanaing transaction, where the

g a
fransaction s measured at the prezert vaiue of the future rece ots discounted at a market rate of nerast

Sucn essets are suhiequently carrad at amaortised Ccost using tne efective nterest method.

Al tne ena of eacin reporting pencd Anancia. asses measured at arrornsed cost are assessed for obje

of imparrment If an atset 15 mpares the rnpa ment (358 55 the d.ference between the carrying
unt ahd the presert vaue of the esimale sC

aroc

rate. 1 he 1mpad rmert Qs s recogn sed ik prd

Other financial assets, nclucing nyvestrnerns in ecuity instruments winich are ~ot subsiares, aszonates or
joint ventures, are ritiaily measures &t fair vasde, whicn s normaily tre ransaction proe 5Ll assets are

Sudsequeﬁsty carried ar fair

lue ard the changes 0 far value are r cgn sed in preft or loss, excent that

t are not puslicly traded ana whese fair values canncT o measurec

Fa
recasly are meaasuraed at cost less irpairmert

o the cash flows from the asset expre or

2 actual rghts
are settled, or b) sucsr,antiany al. tre nsks and fe-.ﬂ,faerds of the ownershig of the asset are tra:

erred o

another party or i) contro! of the asset ~as been transferred to anotner caty who has trie cractica: ab ity
=

jio] ‘ﬁ'lct-—”a”){ selt The rreaed tried party without imocs ng additional restrcuons

-
o}
)
B
(%]

4 otner Cayan.es bark

Yy recogn sed at trans

rstrument s rreasared 3T T8 o




Statement of accounting policies

Debt instrurnents are subsequently caried at amortizes cosl usirg the effect ve interes: rate method. Fees
paic on the establishmert of loar facilies are recognised as tranzaci-on Costs of the loan o the extent that
itis probable that zome or all of the fatiiity will be drawn cown. nthis case, tne fee s geferred until the
draw-down occurs To the exten: tnere is no evidence that it 5 probable tnat some or al of the facility will
ised over the per od

De drawr down, the fee s capitalised as a ore-payrnent for hguidity services and
of the fac-lity 1o wh ch i reates,

—
\
o
5]
o
&3]
e
a;
=
T
S
et}
n

r nations to pay ‘or goods ar servites that nave been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from supphers, Accounts payable are classified as current Lab L2 s if paymenrt s due wathin one
yvear of less. If not they are presernted as non-current lizoilites, Trade payatbles are recogrised mitially at
tranzachcen crice and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the eSective interest method.

Financial labilt'es are derecognised when the Lability is extinguished, that 12 when the cantraciual cblgation
15 discharged, cancelied or expires

Provisions
Provisiors are made where an evert has taken place tnat gives the Group a logal or corstructve obligation

a
that prooably requires <etllement by a transfer of economic venefit, and a re abie estimate can be made of

the arrount of ine cbligaton

Frovisiors are cﬂarged as an experse 1o the profit and loss accourt in the year that the Group becomes
aware ¢f tre obl'gation, anc are measured at the best estimate at the palance sheat date of the expenditure
required to £ tne oblgation, ta<ing intc account relevant risks and uncertainties.

Hadaing

-

The Group zpolies nedge accounting for transact ors entered irto to manage the cash flow exposures of
borrowings. Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest -ate exposures anc are desgraten as cash

fiow hedges of floating rate porrowings Changes in the r'av values o

h

dervatives demgnated as cash flow
Fedges. and whick are effectve, are recognised direcliy in eguily. Any ineffecriveness recging
relaticnsh'p [being the excess of the curndlatve change in farr value of the hedging iﬂstrumemt since
incept on of the nedge over the cumulatve changes in the fair value of the hedged term since reephion of
the nedgel iz recogmnsed inthe profit and tos

The cain or loss recognised in other corprehensz.ve income s reclassified w the proht and 1oss n
ccordance with the cash flows of the hedged item, H cdge accounting is d scontinued wher the hedging

Instrument expires, no lorger meets the nedairg cntena, the forecast transact' o0 is no langear highily
protable, the ﬂﬁ'ajed debt irstrument .5 derecognised or the hedging instrurrent is terminated

Share capital

Crdinary shares issued by trie Grous are recogrized in equity at the value of the proceeds recaved, with the
excess over nominal value beng credited 1o srare premiur.

Hon-controlling interests

Non-cont-olling interests are measured at ther proportionate share of the acquiree’s :denufiable net assets

at the date of acouisition
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Moy accounting ludgoments and estirnates

The precarawn of hﬂahc:at staterrenis it cornnliance wite FRS 107 requires the wse of certam critica!

acoodrting estirnates. It alzo requres marageTent 1o exs Jeagement i applying the Cormpany's

ACCOUNtNg po.oes fshmales and pudgements are continua.y evaluated ang are based or historica

experience and other factors, noluding expectations of future events that are believed o ne reasorable
nder the crcursiances The key estirmates and judgemants in grepanng these finanoial statements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
cans and advances to custormers, -nciuding asscciated accrued income balanceas, are reviewed for

imparment oh a quarterly pasis In consdenrg the need for a provision, managemenrt determine thewr best
estmate of the expacred future cas~ flows on a case by case Dasis. As this estimate relies or a certair

number of assumplions about future everts wh.ch nay aiffer from actual outcomes, Inclusirg thhe

4

borrowe's aility to renay intaraest ang capial due in futire oenods, this gives rise 1o Judger“

whether there s a sho<tfall between t~2 carry ng vawe and tre farr va.us of the debtor balance

Managerent noie that prov @ions ag ang have there‘orc

o]

parformed sensitivity anatys s on the Qrowsbr‘ clude that a change

r 3
nt proviced aggmst the estmates £alance af risk would rave rezuited in

of +/- one ger centir ¢

I“'}

2 em ess/more experditure baing charges o tne ncome statement dunng ine pancd See note 15 for the

carrying armount of the debitors and provis ors at 30 June 2022,

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WIP'} {estimate)

Property deveropment WIP is reviewed for impalrment o 3 pernodic tasis In cons'dening the r
provision, marageraent detarmine therr best estimate of the recovarab 2 value Managerent engage a
rts whick may differ rom actual

expert exterra valler 10 provice Key assurmipt ong anous future ¢

ourcores incud TG property valuations, rate of sai2s and developrment Costs.

shortfal. belween the carying value and the
. manragenent have reviewed the
eonmert WIP and rave abserved no changes in

(27 See rgte 12 for The carrying amount

iii. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities) {judgement)

Groun owns two energy gererating sJbod.aries in Awsiralia whch Fave enterag imtc purchase prce

N
SHAPRA'SH im 2012 ara 2021 T A

contract ‘or differences "CfO" whereby the

on the d\‘fé'&f‘:ces vetwesn a fixeg sellrg cree

o

rs neligve tre coTracl s
Cara tee TR0 s tyoical for

FRS 107 sertion 25 25 o reverye co-tract wir

i=rgy market

b b fmp o m]
ot to ‘5 value,

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

Tre cost of a ous ness corboation 5 the fair value ©f the corfiderator Qiven, abilres incurred slus the
costs directy attnbiutasle 1o the cusrese combinaton Far valee of these corbirat ons Is a key estimae
and maore data s are orovided on pages 45 10 46
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v. Decommissiocning provision (estimate)
The provizien for decomimissicning costs is measured 37 management's best estimate of the present va.de
of the expenditure reguired 10 =ettic the future chlgation to return land on whicn there are operatiorat wind

ard sonar farms, tots original condinan, T he level of the provisions 1s deterrmened (o a Sigﬂiﬁcaﬁt degree by

f-v-

he esdrmation of future disrrantling and resioration costs, as well as the iming of dismanteT ent,

Wind Farms (estimate):
Maragernert note (rat decomrmessioning provisions 3 a critical estimate and have therefore pesformeda

o
)
e}
%
(\

sersivity aralyss. The results of tne sersimivity anatysis ude that a change of +/- one per centin the
discoun: rate wou'd have resulted n 22 1rn increase/decreasa in the prov:ainr Sea nota 17 101 the provision
recognised at 30 June 2022 Managemeart ublise exiernal expertise to provide an esurnated Cost to
dismartle ana have used 3 discount rate of 2% (o reflect the tme in value of money and the niske spechic

to the obligation

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Groun s requirad o restore the eased prervises of the solar farr © ther ongina! conditon at the end
of the lease tanm, A provisior was praviously recognised, however in tne currert year ths dg roent Nas
assessen and managemen: believe the lessor may wish to eitner take Yiie of the assets for either

Ceanre

’D

contnued use or to reaisa value through selling the assets and as such do net beleve that ar outfiow iz
propable to setile this restoration obligatorn.

UK Solar (estimate):

During the year, a tnrd party performed ar assessment of the base cost of the decommissioning of the

Groups UK soiar farms The findings have vesulted in material change n the cost esimate and mnerefore a

provis on has been recognised for the firsl time on scme sites The impact has resulted in a prov sion beirg
raised for £15m to the balance sreet decemmissioning tability and fixed assets As at 30 June 2022 there is

ro mpact on the profit and loss Sites not affected are addressed below.

UK and French Solar {(judgment):

Management believe that g'ven the nature o these particular assets, the lessor may wish 10 sither take title
of the assers for either cortinued use or to rearse value through selling tre assets and as such do not
pelieve t1at an cuffiow 1s prabable to settie this restoratior obl'gation. Management will Conbinue 1o morn:tor
the situat cn at each saiance wheet date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)
The vaiue of gocawill neid oy the Group and investmerts in subsidiary uraertakings held by the Compary
is reviewed annually for imparment. The recoverability of these Ralances 1s considered with reference o the
present value of the estimatad future cash fiows. These calculat ons use cash flow projectors which extend
forward forecast business performance together with assumptions surrounding tne expecied lfe of the
assel, exterrally prepared forecasts and vaiuations, ard any agjustmens reguired to the discount rate (o take
acoount of business risk The estimated present vawe of these future cash flows 1s szensitive to the discourt
e and growtn rate used in the calculation, all of whicn require management's | Jdg(—:ment Testng of the
carrying value has been performed during the year, which ras involved several scenarios being modelleg,
Based ¢ this test ng ana the resulting impairment recognized on investments, maﬂagemem belevas thare
15 sufficient headrosm © support the value ©of goodwill and investments In suisidiary entities

Managerment note that impa rment of goodw.ll and investimerts 1s a critical estimate and have tnerefare
erformed sensitivity aralys.s on the provisior The resalis of the sensilivity anatysis concude that a2 charge

o}
of +/- one per cent in the armoun: grovided agains: tine estimated balance at risk would have resulted i
£5 49m less/more expenditure ceing charged to the incorne staterment during the period. See note & for

the carrying amount of the goodwill and investrreants at 30 cune 2022
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K

Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£000

Lendimg actinties

RERANL R bt ot 7 7O RS R St 0 T ECSathraae $TTTTEE Memaaan® U WP Smamd 40 ST, o

42,504
365,958
223,526

45,978

25,034

8,950
711,830

{rergy operations - solar, reserse povser and wing
Frergy operetions - iomass and lardail

Healtneare cperations’

biorne Durding

A b SRS AT man £

SRS g SRR

425,

2621
£000
56,552
79,820
141,826
42266
4,828
5,202

o0

Incladed rorrcorne from biealircare operations s £17.4m (2021 P12 2mi reatng Lo e sa
and £28 6m {2021 £31 Im)in relaton to services re~deran

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022
. £o00 |
e e e
84,433
23,486

711,830

TR H e e MUY G imzaa N Suauooores e

nited <ingdorm

turcpe

retrerront village arits,

2021

384799
31.893
8,610

425,300

£000

Other income

2022
£'000

2021
£'000

3570 NLLrance proceeds

Ligucsted damag

3,550

5454
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Thiz is stated after charging/(creditng):

{restated} ‘
2022 2021 |

£000 E OOO

Daw ur We wHe EEaHREEA BEReeecSaBhi sewhaeawnsvuis 2iw X R XA FUENG DA RS S e Abaay oy s TR B AR ANES SRA SR R e LA e o€

A'V\ort'aé T of ruar";iblc assels inote 8 37.849 5/ /04

assets fote 8) 7,513 -
Depreciaton oF angiote assets inote 9) 103,802 84,697

Impairment of riangioe

Achiors' remiane atio Cormpany and the Group's corsolidated
hnarca’ gtaternents

45 146

Acdaors remuneration — audit of Comipany's sabs danes 819 1.1%4
Audnors remaunerationr - ron auckt services 246 513
Audiiors remuneration 1ax CoMpIance services 482 672

Difference o foreign exchange 7,772 4,402
13,783 7502

Cpetatng lease renta s

Note 26 detal.s the prior penod ad;ustments.

3

2022 2021

L ___EQ00 . £ DOO
a5 and sataries 85,432 41.383
Social security costs 7.041 3,809
3 233 1.676
95 706 46,868

Y R R AT B0 b st b xR b X 0 s T ST X T D T KR PR B DR K9%L A 2 At

Vel

Othar persisn cost

s
w

The Groun provdes a defined contnbut:or schemes for its empicyees in the UK. The amount recognised as
an expense for the defined contniution scheme is shown in the tak.e above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
Number ) Nurmber

TP RIS & W TR E Y bR kR e n A

\D{édLJCtIOﬂ o o 1,032 699
631 348
rectons 3 3

>

Adrmrstrahis

2

oy

The Campary nad cne errployee other than Sirectors during ine pencd ended 30 June 2022 (2021 none)

o T ed iy
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
& 0 oo e

2022
£000

R e T T et B T TR T Merkal T e Rvaa TR PReas TRERE. T S o

Emotirerrs 176

2021
£ OO"‘

1@3

Dur ng te year nc pension contriputions were made in respect of re dirsctors 21, nonej.

Tra Group nas no othe key managerment (2021 none;

A numper of sutsidianes of the Group operate a casr-setted LTIP o gual fyng employees, whereby
employeas render s:

3

valuaTon of the :Jddeflym.. abs y e far vaiae of tie was ity wards made is Measd

v
4=

e recogniced tax
er the service and perferrance condiions uﬂdertymg each awarg granted

Cash-settied share-based payment transactions with employees

2022

e5 il accoLnt re best ava'lable estmate of the nurnber of units expecte

je for cash, the amount of wricr ic deterrrined oy reference to the
at each

o date ana at the settlerment gate Tre farvalue i3 rﬂmgm‘%eci cver the vesting period The an

JouUNt

o

2021

Number of MNurrber of

awards

awards

’)ﬁﬁmr Qo fskr nding calance 4 1.914,751 o ‘l F4O OO”

umr‘t(‘ darng thc Vr;rw‘ 1,763 563

27475“

Closang outstandmg balance 3,678 314 1 914 751

Tre totsl charge for the yesr was £3.133,000 (2021 £1.334.0 and at tne 30 June 2022 these was

Laclity of £2.407.000 included within credtors greater (nan one year (2021, £1.334,000;

% . .

interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
E£'000 E OO”

rterest or fLank pat 130 9Q7

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021

£‘000

IR GN OANK OIS SE 32, 192
Arorusat.on Of 550 Costs o cank Borrowings 2,597
Fro%l/1oss on aervatve Nrancia, nsrurents (1.235)

33,554

E Ou()
34 77‘3
1,103
587
36,068
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oo oo

a) Analysis of charge in year

Current tax:
UK courporaton tax charge on prati/toss) for the year
Agjustments i respect of pricr paricris

Foreigr tax suffered

2022
£000

(297}
3,196

5,641

{restated)
2021
£000

KR A et B A WU B vt iy B AL R R RBE LS o

1,648
(2.866}

Totai curent tax charged lcreds) 8,540 {1218}
Deferred tax:

Crgiration and reversal of hrming oifferences 6,227 2.074
Adpustmioris in rospect of priar penods {3,741} (3,9%8)
FHect of change in tax cates 5,268 11,491

“ctal deferred tax

Tax charge on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities

7.754
16,294

9567
8.549

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

Trie tax assessed for the year iz Figher (2021 higner) than the standard rate of corporat:on tax in the UK of

19% (2021 19%) The dif'erences are explained below:

b 8 8 B B 8 £ o 1 S e e 5T Dy T
Profit/{loss) before tax
Profit/wossh belforo tax rultiplied by standasd rate of

corporation tax ir the UK of 19% (2020 15%)

Effecis of

Fxperses not deductible for tax purposes

Cther effects

Incorne not faxabie for tax purposes

Adjusiments in respect of prior penods

ffects of change ir tax rates

Total tax charge for the year

2022
£'000

frestated)
2021

£000

11,723
(868)
(8,102)
(545)
5,041
16,294

(21,170)

(4.022)

16,076
1022
{9,350
(6,865)
11489

8.34G

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the rain rate of UK corgoration tax from 29% 1o

25%, effectve 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% 2071, 25%)

which repracenis the future corporation tax rate that was enacied at the 2alance sheet date.

MNote 26 getahs e pricr period adjustments
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8

Software Goodwitl Development Total
(restated) rights

S'aﬂroup o . £000 £'000 £000 EOOO

BT ML Lot e BT S RAIAR bobvhamne VO BRR B R wan Ly TTORRRE R D T TN habbn sy " TP W abeas s PO TRE G R AR

964 726,602 10,216 737,782
20,042 4,058 34,100

Adoitons 2,125 ~ 1.040 3,165
Disposais - 2111 - (21.118)
- 7930 - 7930
At 30 June 2022 308 743 4s6 15314 761, 859

Accumulated amortlsat:on

G« non rams‘

A July 2021 {resated) 107 158,902 1,034 161,043
Crsposals - (2.462) - (2,462)
Loyss O trarstat on - (192] - (1G2)
Irmpairrnenrt - 7913 - 7513
Crarge ‘czf lke year 12 37 514 5232 57 849

At30 June 2022 119 202,475 1557 294 151 '

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2, 970 540 981 13,757 557,708

ALBO une 2027 esiated) 57 566.700 5182 576735

The gan on translaton of fore.gn currency genominated goodwilis recogrised in cther comorehersyve
ncome Anrcrtisation of goodwill s charged to adminisrat on Cosis

Cetaiis of the subs diares acquired curng the year endeg 30 June 2022 can pe found 1n note 27,
Curnsg the year the groun disposed of 2 wind “arms in Sinland, as a res.it 22,50 o accumulated goodwil
amortizalcn was recog” sea 1N the current year and £25 3 of gooowit was reaicea on tre sale Gain on

sale recognised in tne profit and 1oss in retator o this transacnon was E28rm

irmpairmers of £72rm has besn recogrsed 01 goodwil (2021, ~one),
MO BSeCTs Nave seen piedden 85 securly for L anuk ~onore
Tre Corrpany nsd noqargble aszes at 30 Sune 2502 2027 nore
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Teotal
buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)
(restated)
Group £000 E£°000 £000 £'000 £000
con Pt e anef e oV st
ATl Juy 2021 restated) 8531 317467 1655437 27288 43277 . 2.092.000
Additicr s 329 1.536 73,647 80482 238,005 374,480
1308 - 51,342 - 57663 110,315
Fxifar value roverrent - - 368 - 3294 3662
Trasters - 68 1.066 10,536 (32.070 -
Dicpasals (125) - {75,951 - - 76.0886)
At30June2022 10533 315071 1745911 118686 310170 2,504,371
Acﬁﬁnﬁﬁlated depreciation D o R - o o
Ar L Juiy 2021 4,410 90.05% 414,559 1250 - 510,318
Crarge (or tre yoar 183 17130 81,141 3243 - 101,802
Dispesals - - (182) (221} - (403%
FX roverrort - - (7761 - - {776}
At30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 494742 4417 - 610,941
Net bookvalue ¢ e e e e e e . . B VU S i
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,270 1,893,430
A"VSVOV June 205\ l‘%é%a:ed) 7 4121 227408 ‘14280,878 25998 45277 1,581,682

Included witriin tang:ble assets are cap'tal'sed finance costs directly attributakle to banging the asset into
use. Thie net carrying amount of assets held under finance leazes included in plant, machinery, fixtures and
Athrgs s £51.785 000 (20210 £51,534 000} Included in network assets 1s a provision of £1,023.000 for
obsolee eguipmerit and develocpment

The Carnpany rad no targible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 none)

Neote 26 detais tne gricr per:od ad Lstments.
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10

Unlisted
investments Total

Group - e 000 £000

Cont and ',‘e‘ bOOR value et 2t S e e ST

AL Sy 2021 11000 11.000

Aarntons 176,452 126452
S {105.000) (105,000}

At 30 June 2022 E 35,452 o 35 4527

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

Company . €000 .. ... EO00
L3O Jure 2021 2311678 2711678
228,300 228,500

At30June2022
Accumulated |mpa|rments- o

AU3D Jure 2021 195312 195,312
Feversal of mpainrents 1195.312; (195,312}

Impairrmsnits -

At30Junez022 - -

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2 539 978 2 539 978
AL 30 Cune 2021 2 W16 EEF 21:&6 366

assosre | 2sm978

Cetals of related undertakings are shown nnote 29

Unliste invesimerts comprse the Croup's »od ng of the memrbers caciial of Ter ao ULP zlerding
buz~ess ancits srarenc.ding n Bracke Trad g Limed Ferm co-fources Terido LLP 0 Coiober 2012wtk
treinterton ¢ corouching a pronoericn of its future race twougn tre partnersap Addinee

of unvstad imvestraents re'ae toinvesirenis ang avestrantz in Terdo __= ir lre vt Ferr's cash

Ferr has a smsl sharerhoa ng ~ 3racaen rating Lirites fram
23N LI ec at 30 Jure 2022 waz NI 30 Jure 2021 Enig

rzoxer Trad ng o tec € e subs d ary wrdertskirgs of Fern
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
5 R

Casn inciudes cash in nand and deposits repayabe o~ dernand

siricted casn reprezents cash for winich the Group does not have mmediats and crrect access or for
8

which regiatory or legal recurrements resirnict the use of the cash

Group
2022 2021
PR U o wrxan penyen B E'ooo
G S Lz e eASEReA e LA YT Ehga SRS { gjr,,
Restnored cash 60,592
Cashatbankandinhand ) 256,415

172,478

117,141
55,337

Rectr cied casn is comprised of £726.000 heid in Zscrow arnd £5%,866,0C0 of cask held n subs:diaries with
Dr-arinuat d stripution windows.

The Company nad a cast baiarce of £6,422.000 as at 30 June 2022, nore of wicn was restnicted 2021
nore),

12

g S O YT T T

Ash stocy
Fuel, spare parts ana consumables 26,023 18,593

Prope-ty geveloomant Wik 156,918 73,923

184,479 94,711

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense during the year was £120,413,000 (2021 242,212,000

included in the fuel, spare parts anc consamables stock value = a provis:on of £3%0,000 for unusable fuel

siock (2021 £459.000; Includinrg in property develaprient WIF 15 & prov.siorn of 2828000 for warranty and
S.1€ SpEeC o provisions

There haz been no impalrment recognized during e year on stock (20210 none) No invertory has ceen
pledgen as security for habilties (2021 roneg

5

The Company had no stocks at 36 Jung 2022 (Z2C21 nonel,
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Amounts fallmg due af!er one year
Loans and advances to Cusormers
Amounts falling due within one year

Loans and advanres 1o Customes

Group Company :
{rastated) i

2022 221 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £:000 £:000 '

N AR SRR LRaan e v

137,662

223,239

Chrpgmag o TMRERERRR R oo .

16,128 -

369,384 -

EECAERRRS B TR A e Y T EER RS

Trade fdestors 42,050 16,121 392 2t
Arnoudriis owerd by related partes inote 24] - 2,950 32,950 12,751 !
Citner deblors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5,008 :
- 6602 2,527 ;
rarmerns incte 213 54,409 6469 - -
nad roome 145,602 154,375 32,616 |

50,383

Loans and advanaes (O CUSIOMmers are « £13 874 002 {2021 £18 199,300} ;
Frepayrnernis ard accrued n £773 202t Z13747,000) E
N mnerestis tharged on armounts owed Dy group uncertakngs, és the outstarding baarcaes are unsecared

anc repayasie on demana (2022 nore)

Note 26 detalls the prior perod adustments,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
34 e v e e e s e T e e f
Group Company ;

{restated) !

2022 2021 2022 2021 i
R €000  FOO0 €000 €000 |
AB\Vdr\-EH ij dpd(ygurjrh NP 37732 e 3 47J8K€~ T - 1
Trace cred tors 58,004 23,390 76 16 :
Other tarat.on and social secur ty 8,161 - - -
Other creditors 24,362 55906 - - !
Arnounts due o related parlies note 24; - - - 20,203 ‘
Finance leasss {(rote 16} 2,428 3.147 - - :
Denvativa firancial insrrumronts inote 25 - 143 - -
Accrizis ard deferad incorme 75 465 72 u87 373 2 70”

Group
2022 2021
Amounts fallin due between one and five years o £000 £a00
Eﬁa‘ﬁ: To;z 'w‘ra "l ov rdr Al‘ gfé 16' S o l383,070 o 2471;57M
Firiance eases (note 16} 5,899 6,125

Dervatye financial instrurmerts (note 21) -

Other crecitors 5 364 5415

394 333 258,857

Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due after more than ﬁve years £'000 E'OOO

grgpe N O s X U AP eLE

Barik leans and cverdrafts 16) 573,416 577 235
Finance leases (note 16 24,676 24495
(rote 21) - 47 777

598, 092 644 502
Total credilors faling due after more than one year 992,425 503,339

A BB 35S Tt T

= fit “;mcm{ yruﬂ‘m 1

The Company has no creditors due in greater than ore year,

Arrounts owed o related parties are unsecured, non--nterest Searirg ara repayabie on demard
o] g b3

Note 20 details the prnior penod adjdstments
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G oL oL e o

Group

e,

Duein ane y

2022 2021
- £'000 k £000
Y AP
383,070 247,297
573,416 577235
1,044,218  &715l8

Tne Corrpany had ro bank loa=s

The bank loans are secured against asseis

1 nfrastriciure Limited

Llos Energy 2

Boomerarng Erergy Lrrted

Darunguon Point Soar Farm Bty _mited

=

o Henewanle Erergy LK Lirnited

Dulaccs WF Hodco FTY L

Fluvia Foraes | rrered

Zestec Azser Mar ager ant Lirnited

at 30 Jure 2027

of thie Group with each loar &s meld

Interest rate

g R T S e

M6 morth ONIA plus 1 60%
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2 00%

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 170%

1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR
& month SONIA plus 1.50%

6AG% (swap rate of 459% +
1.9% margin}

6 month SONIA pius 2.35%
17% + BBSY

5% 4+ SONIA + 2 5% non-
utilisation fee

Fixed rate 2.5%

Gy the subs dary

2022 2021

‘ E‘OOO ) £000
429,138 428,140
30,946 34,995
56,079 -
284,348 295,344
114,026 -
85,718 103439
31,614 -
12,506 -
43 -
1,044,218 871918

shown Delow

SONIA repaced LIEDR as the effectve imterbark eno ng -

resulted n 0o commers

Finance leases
Tre

IO later thar oreg pear
Later than one veas end ros later thar

Later thar fue years

future mrimur France Base cayrmen's ate as fciow

fve yoars

ate sysiem

| mpact ¢ the busitess.

"

from L January 2042 T

2022
£'000

2,428

5,899
76,461
84,788
(51.785)
33,003

2021

£000

3,165
6,196
72013
81,375
(47609)
33766

purf‘hGSfﬂ CETon
2 leazed 2

zErels.

Tre Corrpary had no firance lease

%
[\I3
.
L{J\J
-

Srmarly reate to a leased £LioAg a1s NEaINCares ecu pment. T rere are ng contingent
-
- L - €
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17 vovoe o i

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)

provision Deferred tax Total

Atl Ju 2u/1 20439 20833 41,272
increase recognised in pront and loss 21 11,495 11,516
Increase recogrsed throughs sther corrprenensive Incomea - 18,202 18,202
Imparmens 16 - 16
Increase recogrised in fixed assets 23656 - 23656
Recogmsed on subsicarny acquismions - (3.568) (3.568)
Adpastraent inrespect of prior yedrs - {5465) 5465}
inwinging of d'scount 249 - 245
Adjustrrient reating to change I accouring astirmate (3.373) - (3.373)
Ciain on translation 5 - 15
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620
The decomimissioning proviscn s held to cover future obligat ons 1o retur land e whach there are

ooeraticnal wind, bicmass and solar farms, to ther origmal condition.

utilised “or in excess of 2% years.
The Cornpary had no provisons at 30 June 2022

Mote 26 details the onor pericd ad,ustments

fute
fed

Ti-

ornpary have the

L T S T

N < LR s NI WAL,y

fol.ow nNg share capital’

The amaourts are not expected o b2

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid . ‘ « i £'000 £000
1616622 011{2021 1494755 258] :
Crdinary shares of FC 10 each 161,662 149676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted calied -up and fully pald o £'000 £000
161,662 149,676
During the vear the Grouo issued 119,866,754 (2021 1501139278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an

£11.887000 {2021 £150,120,000)
(2021 £2.316.6395.000) was pa

Of the shares ssued curng the year, 1ol

€S, givING r3e 1o a premidm o

aggregatﬂ nominal vaiue of
on of £203,750,200

=

cons.deratc 15 for the shar
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£191 763000 (2021 £173,118 Q00). Durng the year the Group curchased nid (20210 4,444 G201 of its own
ordinary srares of £0.10 each with ar aggregate nomnal vaiLe of £nll (2021 £444 000) Total cons siderat on
of Zril (2021 £6,844,000] was pald for the snares, gving rise to a pren.m of £nil (2021 £6,3295,000)

I3

Tre Group has adopled predecessor accoLntrg princip.es as itwas forread as part 0 3 grouo
reconsiructor, trerefore the share capital and snare preriam account are treat

ed as £ they nad atways
ex sten Movernents in share capital ansing ooth before and afier the restucture are reported as moverments

ir the Groop share cap tal

Cur ng the year tne Company ssued 112 027, 2,501.198,278) oranary shares of £0 10 each for an
125.0C0) Cf tng snares iz3ued danng the year, tofal
g

consideration of £202.750.000 (2025 £2, 336 £55.000) was pald for the shares, gving rise (G a premium of
g

] OJ
O\
‘\J
h
I
S
L]

aggregate nominal value of £11.987.000 ("

£191,764,G00 ’902" £2.16€ 5750001 Dunng the year the Group purcated il (2021 4,444 020} of 115 own
ordingry thares o 10 each with an aggregate nomina: value of 2 (2021 £444 0001 Totwal consigaraicn
of 2l 1202 £6.844,000) was pa.d for the sharez, gving rse to a premidre of £nld (2021 £6 ?99 aosy

I¢¥)

Trare s g sing.e class of erdirary sharns Trere are no restrctionrs on the distibuien of dwidends and the

recayrment o capital
Cash flow hedge reserve
Tre cash fiow hedge reserve 13 Used [0 recors trarsations ans ng from the Growp's cazh flow
hedging arrangemeen7s

Merger reserve

The merger resarve arises fror the aifference between the farr vaues of the shares ssues and the hook
values of the sibsidiares acqu red
19 . el
The moverrant in "Cr-corirg:ding nterests was as foliows
Group
Note 2022 2021
EOOO £000

3,721

Sale of subsidiary uncertakings and accwsition

OF PO CONroung mIsrest

27 - (1.842)

triburace (o

CD

(6,622) 14,007)

(2,901) 3721

3
ST e




s
s

STATEMENTS 20 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
g% TR

up or Comoany

Ag at 20 Sure 2022 there were no corungercies acress the Gro

2

Carrying amounts of Fnancal assels and liabilit es

17 e

Group Company
{restated)
2022 2021 2022 21
£000 £000 £0060 £000

L A R SN

423,150 430,556 4,235 17,767

at far value trrough profit and loss - 6,465 - -

48 INCOmMe 54,409 - - -

ured ar fa value through othier comprehens

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

red at amortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 1

&

Meas:

Measdred at farr value through other comprehens.yve imcore - 42 772 - -

MNote 26 detals the prior perod ad ustments,

[a)]

i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Grouo's Fnancizl nsk management seeks 1o mimmise the exposure 1o markel risk, credit nsk, lgu dity
and cash flow risk, and energy marke! r s

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
[Fe energy sector is expeneancirg sign:

cant turbulence and thare 1s a rsk that forecast ieves of ircom™me are

not achieved due © changes 1n wholesale energy prices, ofi-taxe contracts or governmeri: subsidgies
Changes In C;memmcmt POy, or regulator intervenuon may result in regucea iIncome streamms within the

group dué to add tonzal levies.

Currency risk
Tre Group presants its corsoldated firancia statements in stering and condLcts busiress in a number of
other currencies, princ pally Surg anc Australian dollas. Consequently, the Grouo is exposea to fore\gm

e charce risk aue 1o exchange rate movernents, which affect tre Groun's ransactional e<p 5 and the

transaion of earna and net asses of its non-sterling ooorauons

Transactional exposures

Transactioral cxposures anize from administrat ve and other exgense in currencies oiner than the Group's

presentational currercy (Swerlingl Tre Group erters in o forward foraign exchange ontracis ana fara.gn

exchange swaps o mihigate the exchange rate nsk for cerian foreign cu~ency nayabies and rece’pis. The
forward currency coniracts and swaps are measured at fair value which s determined using valuation
wecnnicues that utbse cheervable inputs The key nputs used in valumng the dervatives are the forward

S JR Or 30 June 2

CcorTracts was an asset of £nil {2021 55 £469.000) ara a liso

j=Ysl
3

Rt

excharge rates for GBP AT ana 2 the fair vaue of the foreign currency

Ity of £n. (2021 £143.000)

Translational exposures
Balance sheet translat onal expotures arise or consci dation on the retrarslat o of tre baiance sheet of

non-siEring operations into sierung, the Group's presentat oral currency T leve! of exposure 13

revieswezd

oy management god tre potential foreign cxcha“g_ rroverment is vethin a~ ac ceplaple level of and

Trerefore, tyoicalty, tro Group's policy 10 nat to acuy EXOOTUIES,

interest rate risk
The Groun has exgosure o fluctuat ons in mtersst ratas on ¢ barrowings Where tne Group

Nas arrangerent senered nic o fix;

(=)
)
=
=
O
2
3
[tai]
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=
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3
o]
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=
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j
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=
e
=
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w
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5
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[
=
[0
[¥3]
-
5 W
A
b

a
‘he interest in orger to Mmitgate agairst rterest rates The porton of interes: o

a
ASSSSTET 0N 3 Case b/ caze paslis Maragement can eect whether o nedge account for tnese

O 30 Juna 2722 tre cutstanding interest rate swans Nave a n"atuf:zy I exsess of five years 2ra the far

val.e sineén assetgositor of £54 405000 2020 fE42 629 000
Price risk

2
M
48}
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3
m

sropert es trat the Zroup's

n
agaIngt mede 53 nskthat tre Groun rray rot recals 1 ful exposure Trs s rugated by

a el
matuce of the loans anc the consarvatve evel of loar ~o vaue trzt the Groun s prepares o erd at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Custorner credit r sk is mitigated through the Group's cred L control pohcies, whch are in place 10 ensure
that cur customers have an apprepnate cred @ history and are monritaorec on ar onge ng bass

c) Liquidity risk

Ligu'dity nsk zre managed by ensuding that suffic’'ent cash is ava'lable to fund continaing and futare cperations
Ligu 2y ris< anses on cank ioans 10 place across the Group and is managed trrough careful monizoring of

n
covenanis and sontble [oves of dobr Borrcerng is on a long-terr basis, whareas our réverus 15 récaelvad

throughout the year, as well a2 interest and redempticrs an our shori-term loan ook Cash fiow risk s

maraged throughn orgoing cash flow forecasting to ensure receiots are sufficient to meet Labtities as they
fall dLe

BE L0 o

At the year ena the Grous had cap tal commitmants az folows

2022 2021
Group £000 £'000
Centracted for but not gresd ements 347,254 50,156
Urdrawen facilit.es Gnoans 10 DOrrowers 173,600 92,682

AT 30 June the Group had total “Lture mim reurr lease payments urder non-cancellatle operating leases
as fallows

2022 2022

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buldings
et £000 €000 €000 £000
S . . kit vt vt Fdubus LS
Mot izter thar one year 8,707 661 8031 749
Later than one year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1686
years
Later tran Fye years . Ssse4 T mese e

135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

Fe Grodn had no other off-calance sheet arrangemenrts {2021 noneg)

Under secticns 2244 and 4754 of the Comipanies Act 2004, the parent company Fern Tradmmg Lirmited Fas
guaranteed all owstanding liasiiities on thase comearies taking the exermption to which tre supsidiaries list
on pages 75 to 80 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 untis tney are sathisqed i full These Labdities total
£9.5m Such guararteess are enforceanle against Ferr Trading Limiteg oy any sersen to whor any such
pabilivy it due

The Company had no capita: or other commitmerts ar 50 Jure 2022,




2F v el e e e e

On 11 Juiy 2022, Fern Trading Developrrent Limired (" TD), & subsidiary of the Group, guc:ess.ﬂ.lly sCia

Darlingten Port Holdco Pry Limmited to Cctopus Austrada Master Trust Asmat profit of £855,000 was made

on ine sae

On the 1st of Decenber 2022, the Group acqured nghts 10 a £25m creat youcher and tne ngnt 1o use
rnobie icerses from Three UK, viz a Strategic Conneciivity Agreement, ius making the first steg towara

becorming an mobite vriual network operator.

e G R

Unger FRS 102 33 1A disc.osures need not be given of ransactions entered mto between two or more

members of a Gro.p provided that any supsidiary which s 3 party 1o the trarsacion s wioly owned Dy
such a memb

During e year, Tees of £77,534.000 (2521 £61,154.000) were charged o tne Grodp oy Octoous
Investrnants Limited, a related party dug o its signif cart inf.uence over the ertity q&opus Irvestments
a

Limited was recharged legal and professiora: fees totaling £18,255 (2021 ElE‘- G0 by e Sroup. Arthe
year end, an arnount of £5 500 (2022 £219.0CC) was outstanding which ‘s :ncluced .n trade creoitors.

Tre Group ic ertitted © a profit share as 2 result of ds investment in Terigo L2 a related party due to ey
managernent cersornal n aammaon. in 2022 a share of prefit equal to £5,249 200 (2021 £442000) ~as
peen recognised by the Group. At the year ard the Group nas aninterestic the member's Capital of

1.£12,007,200) and accrueg income due of £5,275,000

The Group engages in lendirg activiiies which :ncluce talances orovides to

et es with <ey managerent ge'sonmel in common, loars of £63,49C.0050 (_ Ll“ 2240001 accrued
income of £1% 789 000 2027 £26,202,000) ard deferred income of £l {2021, £L01,C0T) were outstarding
at year end Dunng the year interest rcome of £7°.60.000 (2027 £17.587000) and fees of £3%4,000 (2021
2535 000) were recogmsed inre.auon fo these loans

Durng e year tnc Groun acgLdire serve power comaanies from comgeanies managec by UTiopus
investments Limuted, 2 reiatec 5 note 27 a) for details of the corneanies acaured

As at 30 June 2022 £n 2751 wias owead o the Company by Bracken Trading Lim tad, 3 reated
party by <ey maragement personnel in common

Other tnan the trarsact ons disclosed asove e Comeoany's orther reated party ransachors were wih os
wholy ownec tutz diary rrerbers o the Group

Irine comion of e direciors, there 3 oo Ll mate corarciling carty or carert comigary

|
|
|
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2& ooy

a) Group structuring review

We have conducted a review of prior years’ accounting treatment of intercompany restructunng In this
review maragement idenified unamortsed cocdwill balances n relation o tnese transacions We have
ad:usted the previous years to reflect the implementation of amortcation peckdsted to when the relevart
transachions occurred Tne accumuated mpact for the goodwis amortisation in the prof T and loss for 2027
was £8m (2020: £5 2 the movement of £7.7m ras ceen restated througnout the 2021 comparative
nurkers. A surmirnacy of the impact of the correction s provided e ow.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group 4 £000 E’OOO £000
(gO\)L\,J\I, 583,988 {5,335) 578,653
Retared sarmns 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated}
Group ___£o00 £'000
Coodwill 602,711 (8.049]
Fetawad carnngs (123,920} 8,049 (115.8/1)

As part of tne review of the ntergroup restructuring mentiored above, managemen: idenufied cne of the
restructures haa beening Ofrect'_/ accourted for in a sub section of the qrouc NG further erors were
discovered n the raview The accurmulated rrpact for goodwill amortisation in tne proft and .oss for 2021
was £2.5m (12020 £1.3m) tne movermnent of £1 2m has been resiatea throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers This impacs to the 2020 opening retaired earmings was offsetl by £2.1m written back against bad
debr expenses. Management have corrected the idertfied errcr with the folawng impact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group o £'000 ‘ £000  E'COC
Condwall T ‘ 582988 T («ég iASSJ CT 554:1‘35‘05‘r

Retered carmngs 41,185 899 42,084

Debters 842 549 (2,724) 839,825

Creditors armaounts 1aling dus witkin cne year (232,813 456 (232 317}

Fined assets 1,346,655 30,512 1.377167

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

{as stated) {restated)

Group o £’000 £'000 '000
QC,QCFV\' ,,,,,,, e e 4 et e e e EERLTE 602 - («22963) e 574 ;48W

Retaned ez nirgs {(123.920) {321) {124,241}

Dentors 600,726 (2.724) 598,002

Credsors arounts fallirg due within one year {207,318} 496 (206,822}

Fixes assets 1.551.170 30,512 1581682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have corducied a review of a4 conscilidanen entr.es al subsections of the group We Fave denth

t
error relating te 2015 when defarrad tax agju e entered as a consolidation entry and had

subseguenty not bean reversed We have <

5]
=)
&
3
A

x ger subsidiary accownt and have ensure!

relevant balances are correct. TN 2o0r was oosted at a CO"LO.lddt@.d level orly ama has now been correctec:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 £ DOD

BT L LTy LT UV SEEL LSO er e pes R e vy SR

Retaincd earrings 41,185 (4,764; 36471
rediters amounts fall ng aue watn o o e vegr (232,813) 4764 {(?28.049)

Tris has g knocx effect inio June 2021, the -estated Dalances are ac folowse

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)

Groupw EOOO £’000 £'000

S eRYE s v e E T CEITTININ L LTI S © e everscsrendianiaa TR R e PemArseayeymama.s + C " S ewwetieviaaw

Retaned earmnnigs {123.920) {4764) 1128.684)
Crediors amourts fating due witrir Gne year (207,318} 4764 (202,554)

In prepanng the tax competanors for 2022, e Groap's tax advisors have ~orced ar overlock

assumigtion ir previous years tax consolidaton caloulations. Witrin te e

assets neld with e th gble ona corsolzated level to offset the Group's arred tax

landity Gnanimcivia s the deferred tax N previcus years nas oeen forfq"'y grisea. A
as

C
Q.
)
i3
e
£
3
5 D
o

part o these deferrea edges hela wits nthe up whick are accourted

shensve ncome Tre accarrulated mpact for the tax charge e profit acd loss
for 2021 was E15r {2620 £15.3mt the mavement of 300k has been resigted trroughout the 2021

comparative nurmoers

for with = other compr

A surmary of the impac: of tre correclicr s orovided selow

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 20 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

Grogpm £ 000 f. 000 £000

Retained aarr »s 41,185 (15,299) 25,886
Cash fow heds G 63837 {(Z.875) 54962

OUs l/ Jdnrecegnicen de:‘errea tax

(36.484) 19,174 (17,310
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group . o - £'000 £000 E£'000

Cash fimw hedoe reser 17,098 {(2.119) 14,975

Deferred lax orovisions {38,145) 17,212 (20,933}

Summary of prior period adjustments:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) {restated)

Group o - £'000 £000 £000

Retared eamirgs T s (13.529) 27,356

Cooowil 583,988 {(34,517) 549471

Lebiors 842,549 (2,724] 839,825

Fixed assets 1,348,655 30,512 1,377,167

Cefarred tax provis.ons {36,484} 19,174 {17,310

Cash fiow nedge reserve 63,837 (3,875) 59,962

Cradtors arnounts falling due within one year (232.813) 5,259 (227.554)

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

{as stated) (restated)

Group £000 ~ #'000 _£000
Retamed carnrgs 1235200 02129 036049

Gooowil! 602,711 (36.011) 566,700

Liebrors 600,726 (2,724) 598.002

Fixed assets 1.551,170 30,512 1,581,682

Deferred ax provaons (38,145} 17.212 (20933

Cash How riecqge resarve 17,098 {(2.119) 14,979

Creditors arnounts fating dae within one year (207.318) 5259 (202.059)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
BT o e

a) Reserve Power acquisition 1
On 2 July 2021 the Group acguired 9 rezerve power s'tes through the purchate of 100% of the share capital :
for consiceraton of 218,

The fcilow ng tacles summarise the consideration paid by tne Grouo, the aT vaaue of tre assets aca.uiren, !

and e liabtlites assumed at the acguistion date.

S EEEIMes sas L RErRemasvae e s o waens s e PR e . % 0 OhEBAY mwan h o TERETAINCAwii. semame L voviereweimesso R s w TR IR k. PR

Coqsideration £000

Ceralz of the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodw !l ar sing are as folows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 £000 ) £000

T L R T LT suanagne

Ssmaka waas o tmEes LEET PPN s e g

80788 (28,553} 52035 ‘f

Trade and otrer receivables 264 - 294

Ficed asses

Prepaymens 635 - 635
Cash ana cash equvalenits 7858 - 7858
Trade and cther creaiters {2.208) - (2.208)
(58 516) - (58,515) %

28,553  (28s8®m) 0 -

L oans

Net assets acquired

Goodw ll resulimg from tre busiress combitanor was il i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Qctoher 2021, the Grouo acguires Doveryard Lmited anc its subsidiary through the purchase of
100% of the share cap:al for consderation of £13 414,000,

The following tables summarise the consiaaration paig by tne Creupn, the far value of assats acgured. ard
liabilites assurned at the 3cquisition date.

Consideration V,Eooon "

B T I R L B T I s PR R AL

Cash 12,377
LAgsT
13,414

attricutanle cosis

Total consideration

Cetaiis of the fair vauue of the rer assets acgurred and goodwill arisirg are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

£'000 £000 £000
559“—; - 5.69\””‘
52 - 52

Prepayrments and acorued income 193 - 193

credhitons

‘rade anc oth

Net assets acquired

Gooowil 15067
Total consideration 13,414

Goodwil resultng from the bus ness combinaion was £13,067,000 and ~as an estimated useful ife of 25
years, reflecting the ifespan of the assets acguired

The consalidated statement of comorehensive iIncome for the year includes £nil of revence and a loss
before tax of £123.0C0 i respect of tnis acguisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition
D 27 August 2021, the Group ac
purchase of 100% of the share ca

The '”‘”bmng tables

.mmarse tne considerat or paid vy the Group, e far vaue

cawred Dolacca W™ Foldce PTY Lid and ts

L for consicararon of £115,680,000

of the ascels a

three sucs.dianes trrough the

rguired,

and ‘e laoltes assume & the aoqusivor date Alist of the entites acgored inciuded in note 29
Consideration o AUD’OOO E)A(change:”R’ate ) E'GOO
(a T menaee 2 e b 3175E7 " 18904 115085
Drrectly attrbutabie costs 1126 18904 595
Total conmderarfrxrorl;lr 7777777 ) 218.683 M B 115 Gré(lw
Detals of the fair value of Tne net assets acquired &nc intangiole arising are 33 folows
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
N . ) ‘AUD 000 N AUD’O?E AUD’OOO . E'OQO . “5'000 E'OOO
Fer"‘ S . 07 633 e 67635 . 36937 e 6 937 "
Trade and orer recavai.es 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357
o cash eguralents 103.072 103,072 54,525 - 54,525
rred come (10 ;«52) - (lO 954, (5 '/93} - [5793)
Net assets acquired 209884 ~ 209884 111, 026 - 111,026
Irtangiole T N 8 799MW o o 4 554 7
Total consideration 218,683 115,680

Imta- gb &5 resh

lung from the asset

reflecticg tre lifecpan of the assets acquired

Tre cons

rax of £227.0200 in respect of this

oidateq staerment CF COMEprerensve ncome "or the vear INCiLees £l of revenue anc
Qe

ACquisItor
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d} Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 22 January 2022, tre Group acguired Zestec Asset Mangerrent _irmted a proect scurces for rooftop
sclar, through the purchase of 120% of the share capital for comsideration of £4,765,000

The following tabies summarise tne cons deration paid dy the Group, the fair value of assets goquired, and

dabhilnes as 5J”\P‘d at the acguisition date

Consideration i e b A e e s £'000
Deferred conaderat on -
Directly attributante costs 1.093
Totalconsuderatuon - - o - - - R 4,765 .

Details of the far value of the net assets acaured and goodwill arising are as follows

Beook Adjustments Fair

values value

o ) £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed azsets o ‘ 156 - 156

Trade ard otner credaors (574) - {574)

Trade ard otner receranles 400 - 400

Cash ard cash equivalents 1,019 - 1.01%

Crther toans (46) - (48)
Netassetsacquired 955 _ o585
};talcons!dera“o;__ e et e e+ me s ettt s ARt R« S e 4755

Coodwil resulting from the buziness combinauon was £3.810.0C0 and nas an estimated useful life of 10
years, reflectng the estimated lifespa of the assets acguired

\(\

The consolidated stztement of comprenensive income for the year includes £198,000 of reveriue and a lo
vefore tax of £454.000 in respect of this acguisition

5
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition

Cn 22 May 2022, the Growo acguires Elivia Aowdicrgs Liritad ana s supnsaiares, throwgh ne purchase of
I00% of the share capita: for consideration of £31,682£ 000
The foilowing tables summarse the consideration paid by the Group, e a7 vaus of assets acocured, ang
ligbilites assomea &t the acousitor date A lst of the ent ties acquired are nciuded in note 29
Consaderatlon '000
Cash SO 999

D\FEJ t./ attnbutable costs 68‘:

Total conslderat:on 7 31 684

Deta:dz of tre fair velue <7 the net assels acouired anc goodwiil ans g are as fo iow

i

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
o _ E'000 E'DDO £000

E;xtizﬁ a;snan?t‘sm o 418 - 118
Irtarsgible assets 11767 - 11,767
Stock 59,935 - 69,939
Trade and ciner debtors 2,609 - 2,609
Cash ana cash equralents 11,603 - 11603
Accruals and deforred ncome (420) - (420)
Frovisions 1930) - {530)
Defered Lix 6,000 (1,400} 4,600
(69 453) - 69 453)
Net assets acqulred e 31 533 o v(1,460‘i‘ - 30 133
Lol . N . S i 551
Totéi éor;.s.ideration - o - 7 - 31 684

Trad= annt othm

vestmated useful | fe of 10

)
(2]
[sH]
5

Goodw it resulung from toe business corncicanon was £1,551.000 snd b

years, reflecting tre fetpar of the assets zcouirec.

—
Bl
4v]

(&N
o]

consoloatea stalemen: of comorehens ve irosme for Tne year nc.udes revenue of £25.0234,000 ar:

GO0 in respect of tus aooudiron
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
2B Lovoo o

Our reported results are prepared in accordance with United Kingdorm Accounting Standarcs, mciudimg
Financal ! ertmg Stardard 202, as detaied in the Financial Statements <tart |’ on page 35 of the Annual

Regort. Ir measurng our gerformance, the financizl meazuras that we use include 1cse that nave Ceen
dernved from cur reportad results noorder fo elirminate factors that distort year-cn-year comuoanscons These
are considered non-GAAFR financial measures

We prmirie net deixt :n addition o cash and gross debt a5 a way of assessing cur overall cash pesit on and ©
12 cormputed as fol.ows

2022 2021
£000 £'000

L et R S AR 0§ T S TR RGT £ ah R

1044218 871918
5,364 -

Gross debt 1 049,582 871 913

L L T T Sy S S GNP SRR PUT SIS S RS N

Bark lzans and owerdraits

C“f o 'r)g,n 5

ﬂk dr.d 0 i) d ‘ 11 (256 415) (1/2 478)

Cash a7 ba

Net debt 793 167 599 440

2

H
H

fa
F i h

fs 2

2383
2}
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
EBITDA

Earnings pefore mterest tax. deprec aten ard amortisst on "ERITOA 1s cacuated by adjusting pro
tax for interest, tax, depreciation ang amorasation, = addor i no experces that do not

the day to day coerations of tre Group We provide &

Sur perficrmran ut tre effecrts of Gnancng pendtures

Ce W Tno

assess

The fodowing table detaits the adjustmants masde to tne reported resu s,

2022
£'000

n wnorpeRteaE pacens v

31,310

Note

Prohtii!oss) for the hnancwi year
Ado

s R 1 e

ofrtarot z 37.849
7913
101,802
33,554
1.105

16,294

Araarbgancn

-~

lreoary

ant OF ntargice assers

“tangihle a

Depreciationr o

[o BN NS v o}

irrerest payable and sroilar expenses
Excepronat tems
Tax

Less

other frec asset investments (5,245)

Ircorme trom

Srare of operating proitin jont vonture -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Detals of the supsidary undertakings are as foliows,

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity

clding Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company

bots Rioton Sonar Srergy H

Ab

Adairda Scar 5PV 1 L.mitea” UK Orrlinary 100% Erergy generation
Agrisol-2 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Fibre network

Allpminis Fiore Limied®™ UK Qrdinary 100% oroduction
Aucnencarroch Energy Limited®™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Aaguhine Lard Company Lmited!™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Avenue Solar Farm Lirized” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury FPower Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Bausolzire 5 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batsclaire 7 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Holding company
Beetley Energy Lirnted”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Beighron Epergy Limited” LUK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Bamneun Wird Farmn Lid™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Bellhous=s Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Birch Estate Solar Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Sclar Farm Lirmited”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
BNRG IOW Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boornerang Energy birmited UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Erattcn Fleming Limitea™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Sciar L mited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Errjn‘r‘wm(dOoyn sclar Developments Holdings UK Ordinary 100% Halding cornpany
Bryn vr Odyn Sclar Develcpments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadorton Reserve Power Lirnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Caicias [nergy Lirnitec™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirnrad® Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Casweli‘ Sclar Farr Liriteg
Cathkon Erergy Limited®”

Causilgey Limitea™

Cedar Energy and Infrastrycture Limited

CEPE Berceronre SARL

Centrale Eo.enne de Producuon d Erergle de

Grardbos SaRL

CEPE de |2 Salesse SARLY

(
u

CE#F de Lacombe ({Centrale colienne de
Froducticor ¢ Energee de Lacornko) SARLY

CEPT de Marsarire SARLT
CEPE Haut du Saue’
CEPE de la kocne Guatre Rveres SARLY

CFPC du pays de St Seine SARLY

Chuttenirg Sclar Twa Zimited™”

Ciararnons 5oar SPY 1L uimies™

C L~ Sevelnprents Limited”
CL= Erviragas orited”™

ces Limited”

)
—
L1
(¥
o
=
IR

CLPE Projects 2 Limiteg
CLPe ACC -1 omed
CoP2 RTC -2 Lraed
CL5E RGC - 3 L ed

R RS R CE Ty maan e e o TTTTC Trere mvwteh oo

Country of Class of
incorporation shares .
UK ‘ Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crginary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK COrdinary
UK Ordirary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Holding

100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
10C%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

R

Principal
activity

Energy generation
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat.on

Energy gereraton
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Oorrnant company

Provision of OoM
Services

Dormant company
Darrmant company
Holding company
Holding company
Hotding compary
Holding company
Helding company
Energy generation
Erergy genaration

Energy generation

F oA suta e e
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

R B s J e NI S

CLPE RGC - 34 Livited™
CLPE RGC - 4 Lirited”™

CLPE ROC - 24 Limitad”™
Ciyne =ower Limied”
Cowsterworin Energy Lirn-ied™

Conron Brigge Erergy Limiteg”

Cour Wind Tarm (Scotiard) L mitea ™

Crazrel Farm Uimiteg™

Crayfern =orres iScuth Coast) Limited -
Crayfern Limited!?

Crayfern Sunley (Shinfoid) Limited™!

Crayrmarsh wimited™

Cressing Soisr Farm Limited™

Cuivery Powsar Limitec™

Cynorn 2ower Limited™

Dafen Raserve Power Lim ted”™

Dairy -ouse Sciar Limited”

Deepdale Farm Soar Lirmited™
Coveryard Limited™

DCrapers Farm Limiteg™

Crulacca Energy Project Co PTY Ld*?
Dulacca Erergy Project FinCo PTY Lig??
Dulacta Energy Project Fleldeo Co PTY L™
Dulacca WF Holdoo PTY Ltd!e

Cyfiryn 2rodyn Liritea™

Eakrng L'mited™

Eiecscl Carmargue SARL?

Elecscl France 7 SARL?

Flecscl France 11 SARL?

Elecsol France 15 S4RLY

Elecsol France 19 SARL

Country of

incorporation

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
Uit
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

LK

LIK

UK

LK
Australia
Australiz
Australia
Australia
UK

UK
France
France
France
France

France

Class of

shares

Okdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
160%
100%

100%

100%
160%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%
100%
1007
20%

90%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy genaratian
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Development of
huilding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principatl
Name incorporation shares Holding activity

Elecso. France 22 SARL® Ordinary 160% Energy generation

S

Elecsol France 24 SARL Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Elecse France 25 SARLY Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Blecso: France 28 SARL? France Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
Flecso. France 41 SARLY France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Flecso. Haur var SARY France Ordinary 100% Erergy genaration
Elios Erergy 2 France SAST France Crdinary 1002 Halding company
tlios Erergy 2 Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elics Energy 3 France SASY Frarce Ordinary 100% Halding company
Elics Energy Holdings 2 _wmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elizs Energy Hoiaings 2 Limniteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elios Crergy Holangs Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elos Renewable Energy irted” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
. . ; Constructicn of
via Developront Frsnce _ mited?s 5 i .
Elivia Developrment Fnance - rmated UK Ordinary 1G0% domestic buldings
Crdinary Financiat services
Elvia Fo'aings Lim ted UK Deferrad 100% - )
i holding companies
Freferznce
Elva Homes (Ceptrall amtentt UK Ordinan 100% Construction of
Hvia mOmes oentral G ied nary ’ domestic buildings
. . N Construction of
Elivig Horres (Dormant 20 Lnraeg’! ' 0% . X
Elvig Zomes (Dormant 2 Lr.ed UK Qrdinary 100% gnmestic buildings
N L .. Construction of
wvig —ormes (TGrange Read) Lnmiteg ™ N % } ‘
Flivia —ormas (Grange Road) Lmite UK Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
. R o Development of
UK rdinary 160% bullding projects
Elvia Homes (Southsrr) Limiea UK Orginary  100%  constuction of
v T LSRR ary ? domestic buildings
1z . cti f
Elrva mormes (Zurbtor) Lneea™ UK Ordinary 100% Constrg tono
dormestic buildings
e £
Eliva momes Lm.ted UK Ordinary 1003 ~ DEveopmento
builcing projects
Eliva ~orh L zagt! UK Ordinary 100y~ Deveoemeniof
building projects
Construction of
Slivia Dxforg om ed™ 1K Ordinary 160% domez‘uc bu:td‘angs .
Buying and selling of
o real estate
. tructi
Eivia 5o Lm teg UK Ordinary 100y  construction of

domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Elvia Southern Limitedtt
tlicomee Limiteg”
Energy Powsr Resources Limited”

EPR By Limited™

EFPR Eye Limited™

EPk Glanford Limitea™

EFR kenewable Erergy Limited™
EPR Scofland Limited®”

EPR Tretiord Lirutec™

Eucalyptus Enercy woldirgs Limited™

Eucalyotus Erergy Lirnited™

Fertwell Energy Limited™

Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limited”
Fern Energy toldings Limitea™

Fern Erergy Limited™

Fern Energy Wind Holdings _mited™
Fern Fibre Limited”

Fern Healtrcare Holdings Limited™
Fern Infrasiructure Limited™

Fern Renewabile Energy Limited™
Fern Rooftop Solar (A} Limites™

Fern Rooftop Sclar (B0

Fern Rooftop Sclar (Zesteg] Lirnitee™
Fern Trading Cevelopment mited™

Fern Tradirg Group Lmited

Fern UK Power Developrments Limited™

Fibrophos Limited™
Fur Buarrows Lmited™

Fraisthiorne Wng Faren Limeted™

Country of

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of

incorporation shares

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Crdirary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary

. Holding |

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal
agtivity )

Construction of
domestic bulldings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Energy generation

Energy project
developrment and
management
services

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
MHolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Helding company
Holding company
Fnergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Fnergy generaticn
Erergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Supply of fertiliser
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

ot 11

Carlaff Energy Lirm ed?

S R

Guganet Fibre Ltd™

Giganet Limited™

Clerichamper Wing Erergy Limited 3

Grange
Guardo

Harbou

Win

o

nce 52 z.o.o!h

rric Pow

Farma Limited’

ver Lirrited™

Hayrnakes (Moant M) LT

Haymaker {Natewoco! Lid™

Hayrraker (Uakardst Holdings Lirmited™

Haymaker (Gaklaras) Ltd”

Helm Power 2 Limited™

Hetm P

Saer cimtad”

Higher Knaop —arm Limited”

=il Erd Farer Limuted™

Imrminghar~ Power Lirmiteg™

irwel Power Lrnied”

SAMEsen #oad Energy Lrmited”

[ e
o AT

rrmar cancns Ll

Loddon Bowear Lrted”

> Fibre Holgmgs Limited”

Jurass:ic

Country of Class of
s v iMCOrporation  shares
UK Ordmaryw
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Crdinary
: UK Ordinary
Poland Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdnary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1030%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%
10Q%
100%
100%
100%
100
100%
100%
160%
90%

0%

100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Erergy generaticn
Energy generation
£nergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Enargy gereration
Energy generation
Energy gerigration
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company

Fiore network
production

Energy generation
Energy genreration
Energy generaton
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generatien

T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name i ceiie... . . imcorporation shares =~ Holding activity ...
Lovedean Lirmited” Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Luring~ce Salar Lirmited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
ML2 Soluticns Lirmited” LUK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Manston Thorne Dimiied” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Marcn Energy Lirmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mar ey Thaich Sofar Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadows Farm Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melbodrn Solar L-nited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melton LG Energy Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton L Holding Limited” LI Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton |G ROC Limited” UK Ordinary  100% ?Zieq;fj;mg
Melton Renawable Srergy (moldings) Limited” UK Crdinary 10C% Helding company
Melton Renewable tnergy NewCo crmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewabie Energy LK L ted UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mils Hill Farm Solar Cimed™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Mirgay Farm Holding Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
MAP Decoy Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
PSP Strete Lia™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Tregassow Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Hatchlands Soiar Lid” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power Limied™ UK Crdinary 106% Energy generation
New Row Farm Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MNewland: Solar L ded™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nirnig Farrm Limiteg® UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Merth Ferrott Fruit Sarm Uirmiteg™ UK Ordmary 100% Erergy generation
Northwicr Power Limited™” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
totos Erergy Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Haolding cormpany
Dgrore Fower Limitea’” 1K Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashford siealthcare Linmited UK Ordinary 89% Egﬁ?s;gservices
Cine Hatheld Sospital Limite UK Ordinary 90w Lrovisionof

heaithcare services
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Country of Class of Principal
Name i i e . IMCOMporation  shares - Holding activity = = .
Orw; Heal fﬂPa & F‘ rtnet s Ll”‘l*f"i UK Crdinary 85% Holding company
Orta Wedgek:l Zolar Heldrgs Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Orta Wedgehili Solar Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Palfreys Barton Lim:ted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Parciad Ho:dings Lrmted”™ IJK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Parciad Liritea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Fibre netwaork

“ark Eroazcband L red™ { 00%
ark Eroacband L ted UK Crdinary 100% oroduction
Fearrret Solar 2 Lid” UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy geneération
Fitchford (Condover Arfied & Stockibatan) ‘ . 5 . .
Lirmied™ 1K Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fitrs Farrm Limritedt” UK Ordinary 160% Energy gereraticn
Poriics Sclar simited” UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Pyrs Lane Solar Lid” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Gueens “ark Roaad Energy Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generatior
. ~ryvices f
Rangefora Care Lmiteg” UK Crdinary 100% Calre SEVIEES 107 3
3 refirement village
. Retirement village
253 ord Cre e 00e
angeford Cnertsey Lirmsed” UK Ordinary 100% develaprient
Rangeford Crrencasier Limitec” UK Crdinary 100% Retrement village
hd development
. irefme lage
Rangeford Dorang Lirmsed UK Crdinary 100% E:SQTSAi?;:él a9e
Fargeford SHodings Lrnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Retirement village
angaford Picxgr o o K 00%
Rangafard Picear rg Limites U Ordinary 100 development
. , . Retirement village
Range's P ted” %
Range‘ord RAR Lirn ted UK Crdinary 100% devalopment
Rangeord Retrarrert Lvng Holdimgs L™ UK Qrdinary 100% Halding company

Retirerment village

Fzngeford Stacletord Lorrited’” UK Crdinary 100% developrment

Reacres ranm Limiec™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
~ed.ske Power Limtea” UK Ordinary 100% Energy genarabion
Ryswon Estate ©ommifea” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Samrmat SAR S France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Se oy Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fibre network

SEPF pro Umited® UK Crdinary 100% )
production
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Country of Class of Principat
Name e it meorporation  shares ~  Holding a"f!)f[“! R
Singrug Hold ngs Umiteg™ UK COrdinary 100% olding company
singrug Lirmted™ UK Crdinary 100% ENergy gerneration
Six Hits Lane (Ragdae) umied” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Skelhrocke Frergy | imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slaugttercate Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Snetterton Renewatle Power Fuels simited” UK Ordinary 100% fSLE':ijy of biomass
Snetterton Renswable Power Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Snetterton Renewable Power Lirnited” UK Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
Soiarh LPOS SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarh SPOT SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
So.arfi SPC2 SARL® France Ordinary 10C# Energy generaticon
Sonarfi SPG4 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarfi SPGS SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sotarh SPC8 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarf SP10 SaRL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Souttcompe Farm Limced™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asapn Poweer Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Lemied” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Rudge Soiar Ltd” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Shipton Belnger Sciar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Enerqgy generation
Stellar Powe Limited™ 1JK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Swoneyhil Energy Lirnied® UK Ordinary 100% Dofrnant company
Suls Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Sumrrerston Energy Lirmiedg®” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Sunley Crayiern Lavant LLP* UK NA 50% NA
Swish Fire Contracting Lirited® UK Ordinary 100% Sggunce;gnork
Swish Figre Lirsted® UK Ordinary BO% Holding company
Swish Fibre Networks Lid® UK Crdinary 100% Egguzﬁéitg?m
Swish Fibre Services Lirnited” UK Crdinary 80% S{erurﬁitgfrk
Swaish Fibre Yorkshire® UK Crdinary  100%  lore network

production

Swash Tradirg Limited™ UK Crdinary 80% Holding company
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Name

AR S 4 L acoabb BTG B o S LR T T T GREREETII

TGC Solar 102 Limited™

TGO salar 83 Lmea™
The Farn Power Company Limited™

ine =oles Solar marm wmited”

Thorespy Estate iBudby; Lirmited™
Trlinghar Power Lirrutend”™
Tochkdls Energy Limeted”
Tredown Famm Lvted™

Turves Solar Limited”™

UKSE 15 Soler Limited™

UAites Mnes Energy Jimitea™
YOSE Lid™

Victona Sclar Lim ved™

-
=

vingrs Energy Lmiteo
Vitrd Lirrited™

voltafrance 01 SAR_®

Voltafrance G5 SARL®

Wadswic< Green | imited”

E

Wanswicx Green Property Sesvices Lrnied
Warrington Power Lmned”
Mate nn Scar Park Holdings Liriteo

Water oo Solar Park _poed”

incorporation

M s e g

Country of

Class of

Holding activity

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

LUK

France
France
France
France

UK

USA

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK

shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Oridinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Grdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
COrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

100%
100%

100%

1007%
100%

100%

10G%

100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Energy geneuru:ation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generation
Energy gensration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Enerqy gereration

Fibre network
croduction

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
preduction

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre netwaork
production

Retirement village
operatar

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Halding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 i
Country of Class of Principat %

Name .. e v iiCOTPOFation shares - Holding activity e

Wetherden freq,Ur*-u)—j M UK Ordir;a‘rym - 100/ Energy generation 3

Wharf Power Lrmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation 4

Whiddaon Farrm L mitod™ UK Ordinary i00% Energy generation !

Wrinrey =il Erergy Lirmitcg™ UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation

Wincele So.ar Holdings Linited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Wolverhampton Power Ltg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Wryae Croft Wind Farrn Lirited?®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation i

WHE Bradfore Lrmited™ LIK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

WEE Holavington Holdings « mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany

WSE Hudlav ngtan Limmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

WSE Fark Wall Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gerieration

WEE Pyde Drove Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation :

Zegler Asset Maragemnent Limted” K Crdinary 100% Energy generation J

Acquired after year end Date

Fern Rooftop Solar (38 Limted e T 012022

Cuckoo internet Lid 31/08/2022

Wienfi Digital Lemited 13/07/2022

A0 Urrited 2271172022

Subsidiaries exempt trom audit Dy virtue of 34804 of the Comrpanies Act 2006
“Subsidianes exempt from audit by viriee of 54794 of the Cormpan es Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dissolved or soid durlng the year: and up | untll 5|gnmg Date

R Y SRR RS b

et e s L RT AR A b 127 Ta TTE Y MDAk o 3k et Lo TRy AL Ke sk knnak 2 o YR [

Berneun H::Ldm‘:,d Lmred 20/07/2041

Ridge Wind Acquis ton Lirrited 20/07/2021
Fern Friergy RicgeWind Acquisinons Limien 14/09/2021
Fern Energy Rio g:\«”v'i-’“.d owings Limite 2140972021
Fern Erergy Sartnersnins Holdings Lirm.ted 21/09/2021
Frasithorpe iHoing! Lirmited 29/03/2022

oY Oldhall Frergy Recovery Limiterd 13/08/2022
Cormmz2l | 15/08/2022
Darlington Foint Holacg Pry Lirmated 08/07/2022
Darlington Fairt Solar Saree Pry Limaied 08/07/2022
Darirgton Foint Suiholdco Pry Lim ted 08/07/2022
Nordic Power Deveiogmrernt Lirmited 2311212021

yoyrnkargas Wina Farm Oy 23/12/2021
Sauramaa Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2CG21
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5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITID)

Fern’'s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limited s an unlisted company Every rontk, our Board of Direciors agrees a proe at which it

walt e willing to issue aew shares The share price 15 unaudized

The figures below include the share price of tne previous parent (now Ferm Trad.ng Grouwp Lmitad) as well
as this enuty

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

1%
18 ol

17 e
16

15 Fan

g

Pt
14 T

13 MM
12

11

10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

a

Parforreance is caiculated based or the sale price for Fern's shares a7 £ June each year. the share pnce s
not sucject o audit by Ernst & Young LLP,

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

ittty ¢ 0 DR T MR A S 5 T PN

Sy B Y

Juneg 2021-22 9.9i%
June 2620-21 4.87%-
June 2{}718—19 6.23%
June 201517 R - N -5.54%h
Junre 2015—16 3.83%
June 2013-14 3.72%
.june 2012-13 3.97%
June 2011-12 1.02%

Source OcCiopus investments vmited, 2 June 2027




6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

\/\/

Directors and advisers

Dirve
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ctors Hegistor

Y oongen Eeglard ECLN 24T

T Artaur (anpointea 1 Suy 2022) Pindependent auditors
PoErmet & Young LLP
AEEuF sevreatar : "
Company se ¥ I Sedford holse

&

Octopus Company Secrearal Serv-cas Lm ed P16 Badtorg Streel
Fast BT2 707

Company number ;

12601636 :

Forward-looking statements

Triz Arinual Report conta ns certarr ferwarc-loo-ing statemenis related to e Company's (Lture busiress
and Anarcial performance and future events cr developments These siatomerts are based or the current

2%, 357 e

knowlecoge and expectat ons of marage
of which are relates to factors that are beyora ire corurol he Cormpany Accoraingly, no assurance can

Cirerds or

be given that any particular expectation wail be met 2na fowvard-tookmg staternents regarding o2
activiies should rot be taken as 3 reprasentaror trat such renas o activil 05 witl ontnue in the “uture Fas:

n
perfermarce canna: be relieg o as g guiae @ future parforrnance. Nottung 0 tris Annmual Renart showid be

Construen




